Byron Bethany Public Finance Authority
And the
Byron Bethany Irrigation District

Meeting of the Board of Directors

VIDEO CONFERENCE BOARD MEETING
Tuesday, January 19, 2021
9:00 a.m.

DISTRICT HEADQUARTERS

7995 Bruns Road, Byron, California 94514-1625
Telephone: 209-835-0375 Facsimile: 209-835-2869



RUSSELL KAGEHIRO
President
Dnasion V

TIM MAGGIORIS
Vice President
Division 111

LARRY ENOS, JR
Director
Division |

MARK MAGGIORLE

Director
Divisson 11
AGENDA
VACANT
I)D“Lu: v Video Conference Board Meeting
Of the Byron Bethany Public Finance Authority
And the
Byron Bethany Irrigation District
Tuesday, January 19, 2021
9:00 AM

Call-in Information:

Meeting ID: Join Zoom Meeting
https://us02web.zoom.us/}/8458078863
Meeting 1D: 845 807 8863
Call In Number
1-669-900-6833.,8458078863#

CHARLES TUSO
Director
Diwvision V1

VACANT
Director
Dmasion V11

TOM PEREIRA
Dircetor
Division VI

_[.-\(.'I\' ALVAREZ
Director
Division 1X

the meeting, please contact the District office at 209-835-0375.

NOTE: In accordance with the Governor's Executive Order (N-29-20) and the declared State of Emergency as a result of the
threat of COVID-19, nembers of the Board of Directors and staffwill be participating in this meeting remotely from multiple
locations. Members of the public are encouraged to use the call-in mumber, which will allow them to fully participate in the
meeting without having to be present in person. If members of the public have any problems using the call-in number during

Call to Order/Roll Call.

Consider Corrections to the Agenda of Items, as authorized under Government Code Section 54950 et seq.

Opportunity for Public Comment — Any member of the public may address the Board concerning any matter
not on the agenda, but within the Board’s jurisdiction. Public comment is limited to no more than three

minutes per person.

The Board of Directors will convene as the Byron Bethany Public Finance Authority to address the following:

BBPFA 1. Review and consider adopting Resolution 2021-1 approving the form, execution and delivery of a
Trust Agreement, Installment Sale Agreement and Assignment Agreement and any and all other
documents required to cause the execution and delivery of Byron Bethany Public Finance Authority,
Series 2021 Enterprise Revenue Bonds and authorizing and directing certain actions with respect

thereto.

Adjourn and convene regular meeting of the Board of Directors of Byron Bethany Irrigation District.




REORGANIZATION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

A. Election of President
B. Election of Vice President
C. Ratify the Presidents’ Committee Appointments

CONSENT CALENDAR

The following items are expected to be routine and non-controversial and can be acted on in one consolidated
motion as recommended or may be removed from the Consent Calendar and separately considered at the
request of any person.

1,

R ol

Approve meeting minute summary of December, 2020.

Accept Treasurer’s Report through December 2020.

Approve Check Register through December 2020.

Approve West Side Service Area Check Register through December 2020,

Accept West Side Service Area Treasurer’s Reports through December 2020.

Adopt Resolution 2021-1: Tracy Office PO Box Rental.

Adopt Resolution 2021-2: Authorizing a Debt Service Prepayment of $483,572.00 from the DHCCP Resetve
Account relating to the SLDMWA Delta Habitat Conservation and Conveyance Plan Activity Agreement.
Adopt Resolution 2021-4 approving, authorizing and directing execution and delivery of a Trust
Agreement, Installment Sale Agreement and Assignment Agreement in connection with the issuance of
Series 2021 Enterprise Revenue Bonds, and setting forth the terms and conditions thereof; authorizing the
execution and delivery of any and all documents, instruments or certificates necessary or desirable to
accomplish the foregoing; and providing for other matters properly related thereto.

DISCUSSION/ACTION CALENDAR

9.

Review and consider adopting Resolution 2021-3 accepting the resignation of Directors Jeff Brown
(Division VII} and Felix Musco (Division IVY and, approve the restructuring of divisions within San
Joaquin County.

REPORTS

Directors
General Counsel
General Manager

ADJOURNMENT




BBFPA 1

BYRON-BETHANY IRRIGATION DISTRICT
BYRON-BETHANY PUBLIC FINANCE AUTHORITY
STAFF REPORT

DATE: 14 JANUARY, 2021
TO: BOARD OF DIRECTORS
FROM: RICK GILMORE, GENERAL MANAGER

SUBJECT: DISCUSSION / ACTION REGARDING AUTHORIZATION,
PREPARATION, SALE AND DELIVERY OF BYRON BETHANY
PUBLIC FINANCING AUTHORITY, SERIES 2021 ENTERPRISE
REVENUE BONDS

BACKGROUND / DISCUSSION:

The District floated a temporary line of credit (using reserves) to advance money for the
lump sum payoff of its contract {the “Repayment Contract”) with the United States,
which, the District expects to be reimbursed from an issuance of tax-exempt municipal
bonds (the “WIIN Act Obligation”) issued through the Byron Bethany Public Financing
Authority (the Authority”}.

Due to the low interest rate environment, the District would also like to finance the cost
of its upcoming canal lining project (the “Canal Lining Project”} along with the financing
of the WIIN Act Obligation Project (collectively, the “Project”), rather than drain its
reserves which are needed to finance other improvements identified in the CIP (and to
pay for any unforeseen projects and expenses) over the next 10+ years.

Under this approach, the Authority will issue its Byron Bethany Public Financing
Authority, Series 2021 Enterprise Revenue Bonds, in the aggregate principal amount of
not to exceed $4.5mm (the “Bonds”), the repayment of which will come from net revenues
of the District’s enterprise operations.

The District has a firm commitment from JPMorgan Chase Bank (the “Bank”) to purchase
the Bonds based upon a term of 10 years at a fixed interest rate of 1.63%. Based upon a
$4.5mm issuance, the annual payment would be approximately $488,000.

Attached is a draft preliminary numerical analysis setting forth details as to the
estimated debt service calculations.



If the Board desires to move forward with the issuance of the Bonds and correspondingly
adopts the subject Resolutions, staff, with the assistance of Bond Counsel and the
Municipal Advisor, will finalize documentation (the forms of which are being approved
by the subject resolutions) and close the transaction at first possible opportunity, which is
expected to occur on February 2, 2021.

The District’s Municipal Advisor, Frank Sorianc of Caldwell Sutter Capital, Inc., and the
District's Bond Counsel, Cameron Weist of The Weist Law Firm, will be on the
teleconference call to present the details of the documents being considered by the Boards,
discuss the financing features and to answer any questions the Board may have.

SUMMARY OF THE BONDS AND FINANCING DOCUMENTS:

The subject resolutions essentially authorize and approve the form of all the base legal
documents (the “Financing Documents”} necessary to provide for the successful issuance
of the Bonds. The adoption of each Resolution is a legal prerequisite to allow for the
completion of the appropriate documentation necessary for the finalization of the Bonds.
The accompanying Financing Documents comprise a financing structure that is
considered standard for California special districts to legally incur debt secured by
enterprise fund revenues, and is acceptable to the Bank, as the purchaser of the Bonds. In
using this financing structure, an installment sale arrangement must be established with
a third-party governmental entity. The Authority is being used to serve this purpese for
this financing transaction.

The Financing Documents are being presented to both the Board of Directors of the
District and the governing board of the Authority as “form-only documents.” The subject
resolutions authorize and direct certain District and Authority officers and the General
Manager/Executive Director to finalize the Financing Documents as and when
appropriate, and to do all things necessary to provide for the issuance of the Bonds.

The Financing Documents can be succinctly summarized as follows: The Authority sells
the Bonds directly to the Bank, the proceeds of which are used to pay Project costs and
costs of issuance. Pursuant to the Installment Sale Agreement the District is “purchasing”
the Project from the Authority in exchange for making the semi-annual Installment
Payments which are assigned to the “Trust Administrator” (which role is being served by
the General Manager), who then makes corresponding semi-annual debt service
payments directly to the Bank. The Bonds are to be issued as limited debt obligations, and
therefore it is only District’s enterprise fund that is being exposed to repayment risk.

The draft Financing Documents, and a brief description of each, is as follows:

Installment Sale Agreement: This agreement provides for the sale of the Project to the
Authority, and then back to the District in exchange for the District’s promise to make
future semi-annual Installment Payments to the Authority, which semi-annual payments

b



are commensurate with the debt service on the Bonds. In addition to making the
Installment Payments, the District covenants to acquire and construct the Project in
accordance with proper plans and specifications, and then to maintain the Project
throughout the term of the Installment Sale Agreement, pay taxes, if any, and to maintain
various forms of insurance.

Trust Agreement: This document provides for execution and delivery of the Bonds to the
Bank in exchange for proceeds in the par amount thereof, and further establishes the
covenants and specifics of the Bonds, including (i) the application of proceeds to pay for
the reimbursement, acquisition and construction costs of the proposed Project (as well as
payment of the costs of issuance for the Bonds), (ii) the Trust Administrator’s duties, (iii)
repayment mechanisms, (iv) default and remedies provisions, and (v) the Banks rights
and remedies.

Assignment Agreement: This document provides the terms and conditions under which
the Authority assigns the District’s Installment Payments to the Trust Administrator, for
ultimate payment to the Bank.

Irrevocable_Prepayment Instructions: These are irrevocable instructions pursuant to

which a portion of the proceeds of the Bonds will be sent to the Bureau and used
exclusively for the purpose of prepaying the WIIN Act Obligation.

In addition to approving the form of the Financing Documents, the Resolutions also
authorize the President/Chairperson and the General Manager/Executive Director and the
financing team to work with the Bank, and ultimately provide for the execution and
consummation of the transaction.

FINANCIAL IMPACTS:

The attached Resolutions establish the legal and financial framework for the issuance of
the Bonds for purposes of reimbursing the District for the payoff cost of the WIIN Act
Obligation along with the project costs associated with the canal lining project. Fursuant
to the Installment Sale Agreement, the District promises the owners of the Bonds (i.e., the
Bank) to annually budget and appropriate from the Enterprise Fund sufficient funds to
make all Installment Payments pursuant to the Installment Sale Agreement. Annual
payments are expected to average approximately $488,000 per year for 10 years. The
interest rate is set at 1.63%.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:

That the Boards adopt the respective subject resolutions providing for the issuance of the
Bonds and authorizing the General Manager to enter into agreements with the named
consultants.



RESOLUTION NO. 2021-1

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE BYRON BETHANY
PUBLIC FINANCING AUTHORITY APPROVING THE FORM, EXECUTION AND
DELIVERY OF A TRUST AGREEMENT, INSTALLMENT SALE AGREEMENT,
ASSIGNMENT AGREEMENT AND ANY AND ALL OTHER DOCUMENTS REQUIRED
TO CAUSE THE EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF BYRON BETHANY PUBLIC
FINANCING AUTHORITY, SERIES 2021 ENTERPRISE REVENUE BONDS, AND
AUTHORIZING AND DIRECTING CERTAIN ACTIONS WITH RESPECT THERETO

WHEREAS, the Byron Bethany Irrigation District (the “District”) and the Town of Discovery Bay
Community Services District, hereafter sometimes referred to as “Members,” have heretofore approved the
formation of the Ukiah Public Financing Authority {the “Authority”) through the execution of a joint exercise of
powers agreement, dated as of July 1, 2012 (the “JPA Agreement”); and

WHEREAS, the Authority, a joint exercise of powers authority organized and existing under the laws of
the State of California, was formed pursuant to the provisions of Articles 1 through 4 (commencing with Section
6500) of Chapter 5 of Division 7 of Title 1 of the Government Code of the State of California (the “Act”), and is
authorized pursuant to Article 4 of the Act (the “Bond Law™) to borrow money for the purpose of, among other
things, making loans, buying securities, purchasing facilities, and providing for installment sale arrangements to
assist the District further its public purposes; and

WHEREAS, the District desires to reimburse itself for a recent payment made on its contract obligation
(the “WIIN Contract”) to the US Bureau of Reclamation under Section 4011 of the Water Infrastructure
Improvements for the Nation {the “WIIN Act™), in the amount of § 2,175,612.00 (the “WIIN Act Obligation™);
and

WHEREAS, the District has requested the assistance of the Authority to cause Series 2021 Enterprise
Revenue Bonds (WIIN Act Refinancing and Water Supply Project) (the “Bonds™) to be delivered to JPMorgan
Chase Bank, N.A. (the “Bank™) in the aggregate principal amount of not to exceed §4,500,000, the proceeds of
which will be used to reimburse the District for the payment made on the WIIN Contract and to finance the
acquisition and construction of a public improvement project that includes canal lining, canal overlay, box culvert
crossings and fencing, together with all additions, extensions, expansions, improvements and betterments thereto
(the “2021 Water Supply Improvement Project,” and together with the WIIN Act Obligation, the “Project™); and

WHEREAS, the Bonds will be issued pursuant to and secured by a Trust Agreement (the “Trust
Agreement”), dated as of February 1, 2021, by and among the District, the Authority and the General Manager
of the District, as trust administrator (the “Trust Administrator”); and

WHEREAS, the District proposes to purchase the Project, from the Authority pursuant to a certain
Installment Sale Agreement (the “Installment Sale Agreement”), dated as of February 1, 2021, by and between
the District and the Authority; and

WHEREAS, the District will make installment payments pursuant to the Installment Sale Agreement
(the “Installment Payments™) from the Net Revenues (as defined therein) of the Enterprise (as defined therein)
in order to purchase the Project from the Authority; and



WHEREAS, to implement the foregoing, the Authority and the Trust Administrator propose to execute
and enter into an Assignment Agreement (the “Assignment Agreement™), dated as of February 1, 2021, whereby
the Authority will assign to the Trust Administrator all of its rights and entitlements under the Installment Sale
Agreement, including but not limited to the entitlement to receive the Installment Payments from the District;
and

WHEREAS, the Authority is authorized under the provisions of Articles 10 and 11 of Chapter 3 of Part
1 of Division 2 of Title 5 of the California Government Code, commencing with Section 53570 of said Code (the
“Bond Law™), to enter into financial arrangements for the purpose of refinancing certain outstanding obligations
of its Members, including the WIIN Act Obligation; and

WHEREAS, the Authority proposes to sell the Bonds to the Bank pursuant to all on the terms and
conditions herein set forth and as provided in the Trust Agreement and Installment Sale Agreement; and

WHEREAS, the Authority, with the aid of its staff, has reviewed the Trust Agreement, the Installment
Sale Agreement and the Assignment Agreement, the forms of which are on file with the Secretary of the Board
of Directors of the Authority (the “Secretary™), and the Board of Directors of the Authority (the “Board”™) wishes
at this time to approve the foregoing in the public interests of the Authority; and

WHEREAS, the Authority desires to designate the Bonds for purposes of Paragraph (3) of Section 265(b)
of the Code as a “Qualified Tax-Exempt Obligation;” and

WHEREAS, all acts, conditions and things required by the Constitution and laws of the State of
California to exist, to have happened and to have been performed precedent to and in connection with the
consumimation of such financing authorized hereby do exist, have happened and have been performed in regular
and due time, form and manner as required by law, and the Authority is now duly authorized and empowered,
pursuant to each and every requirement of law, to consummate such financing for the Project in the manner and
upon the terms herein provided; and

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY DETERMINED AND RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF
DIRECTORS OF THE BYRON BETHANY PUBLIC FINANCING AUTHORITY AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. Recitals and Findings. The Board hereby specifically finds and declares that each of the
statements, findings and determinations of the Authority set forth in the recitals set forth above and in the
preambles of the documents approved herein are true and correct.

Section 2. Authorized Representatives. The Chairperson, Executive Director, Secretary, and any other
person authorized by the Board to act on behalf of the Authority shall each be an “Authorized Representative”
of the Authority for the purposes of structuring and providing for the issuance of the Bonds, and are hereby
authorized, jointly and severally, for and in the name of and on behalf of the Authority, to execute and deliver
any and all documents and certificates that may be required to be executed in connection with the execution and
delivery of the Bonds, and to do any and all things and take any and all actions which may be necessary or
advisable, in their discretion, to effectuate the actions which the Board has approved in this Resolution.

Section 3. Bonds. The Board hereby authorizes the preparation, sale and delivery of the Bonds in an
aggregate principal amount not to exceed $4,500,000 in accordance with the terms and provisions of the Trust
Agreement.




Section 4. Bond Documents. The form of the Instaliment Sale Agreement, the Trust Agreement and the
Assignment Agreement in substantially the form on file with the Secretary and presented at this meeting are
hereby approved. Each Authorized Representative, acting singly, is hereby authorized and directed, for and in
the name and on behalf of the District, to execute and deliver the Installment Sale Agreement, the Trust
Agreement and the Assignment Agreement in substantially said form, with such changes therein as the
Authorized Representative executing the same may approve (such approval to be conclusively evidenced by such
Authonized Representative’s execution and delivery thereof). The Board hereby authorizes the delivery and
performance of the Financing Agreement.

Section 5. Appeintment of Trust Administrator. The Authority hereby consents to the General
Manager of the District being appointed to act as Trust Administrator under the Trust Agreement unless and until
replaced in accordance with the provisions of the Trust Agreement.

Section 6. Qualified Tax-Exempt Obligation. The Board hereby designates the Installment Sale
Agreement and the Bonds for purposes of Paragraph (3) of Section 265(b) of the Code as a “Qualified Tax-
Exempt Obligation™ and covenants that the Bonds do not constitute a private activity bond as defined in Section
141 of the Code and that the aggregate face amount of all tax-exempt obligations issued by the Authority
(including all subordinate entities of the Authority and all entities which may issue obligations on behalf of the
Authority) during the calendar year 2021 is not reasonably expected to exceed $10,000,000, excluding, however,
private activity bonds, as defined in Section 141 of the Code (other than qualified 501{c)(3) bonds as defined in
Section 145 of the Code) and current refunding obligations having a principal amount not in excess of the
refunded obligation.

Section 7. Good Faith Estimates. Set forth below are good faith estimates of the Municipal Advisor,
as required under Section 5852.1 of the Government Code. The following estimates have no bearing on, and
should not be misconstrued as, any not-to-exceed financial parameters authorized by this resolution.

(a) The true interest cost of the Bonds is estimated at 1.63%, calculated as provided in Section
5852.1(a)(1}{A) of the Government Code.

{(b) The finance charge of the Bonds, including all fees and charges paid to third parties, is estimated
at $82,500.

(c) Proceeds of the Bonds received by the District of $4,500,000.00 less the finance charge set forth
in (b} above, is equal to $4,417,500.00.

(d) The total payment amount calculated as provided in Section 5852.1(a)(1 (D) of the Government
Code is estimated at $4,886,961.78.

Section 8. Other Actions. The Chairperson, Executive Director or Secretary, and such other officers of
the Authority are authorized and directed, jointly and severally, to do any and all things and to execute and deliver
any and all docurments which they may deem necessary or advisable in order to consummate the sale and delivery
of the Bonds, and the delivery of the Installment Sale Agreement, Trust Agreement and Assignment Agreement
and otherwise effectuate the purposes of this Resolution.



Section 9. Effect. This Resolution shall take effect immediately from and after the date of its passage and
adoption.

THE FOREGOING RESOLUTION WAS PASSED AND ADOPTED by the members of the
governing board of the Byron Bethany Public Financing Authority at its regular meeting held on January 19,
2021, by the following roll call vote:

AYES:
NOES:

ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

Chairperson
ATTEST:

Secretary

LI I o

I hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and correct copy of a Resolution duly adopted by the BYRON
BETHANY PUBLIC FINANCING AUTHORITY, a joint exercise of powers authority organized and existing
under the laws of the State of California, at a regular meeting of the Board of Directors thereof duly called and
held at the office of the Authority on the 19th day of January, 2021.

Secretary
BYRON BETHANY PUBLIC FINANCING AUTHORITY



INSTALLMENT SALE AGREEMENT

Dated as of Februnary 1, 2021

by and between the

BYRON BETHANY PUBLIC FINANCING AUTHORITY,
as Seller

and the

BYRON BETHANY IRRIGATION DISTRICT,
as Purchaser

Relating to

$
BYRON BETHANY PUBLIC FINANCING AUTHORITY
SERIES 2021 ENTERPRISE REVENUE BONDS
(WIIN ACT REFINANCING AND WATER SUPPLY PROJECT)
BANK QUALIFIED




TABLE OF CONTENTS

Page
ARTICLE L:
GENERAL:
SECHON 1,01, DEfINIEONS 1.v.overuieeeesresesrireiinrairiareesssessssserasesrarssssses st sssass spras s eess e acs e ases cens st esassasrses semesas s sessenmsre 2
Section 1.02. Representations, Covenants and Wartanties. ........cc.cmeemeenrmmeccssemsmormemsesmansremssesseseressessesserer sonsses 2
Section 103, WITHEN CeItITICALES ...veiuvroerieraeeeee s rernessssssrass easssibise s vast s e bbb et s b ks 00 2
SECHON F04, BXRIDIES ..oceee et ettt e et bbb e senms skt s b s rmnmsersama b e bbb b bbb b b bbb 3
ARTICLE II:
DEPOSITS; PAYMENTS ; CONSTRUCTION
Section 2.01. Deposit Of MOMEYS ..o reeeercireerieercsmrancareremssisersessessessass s sersscsmesessessessesesassesseressassessessrses sessesssa o soasses 3
Section 2.02. Payment of Construction Costs and Delivery CostS ... e 3
Section 2.03. Unexpended PrOCEEAS ... .o vviwrerrerriaremse e srsssiast semssisassss stass susesst stoessias s mussissstssassthssbesntssbastsass 1ot sessbas 4
Section 2,04, COnSUCON OF PrOJECL.. v e erriseseerssessssss semmanrass soessmes sussssbass sussass mimbantrssreias s b st amas st bt s sassbs 4
ARTICLEIIT:
PROJECT SALE AND TITLE; INSTALLMENT PAYMENTS; NET REVENUES
SECUHOM J.01  BAIE .o cr e crme e e arese s aa s s s sb b A b b S ma ot B AR SIS SR Ao A a1 R baSE S S Eha e SR AP BRSO Ease et st 100 4
SECLIOM 3.02. TILIEuruusertemererersesresssenesrenssisssesssesressrasssensassassessessesresense s spasaspasass sesees e s sas et shaerssessssesremerasesaesse e eunsses 4
Section 3.03. Assignment by the AUHOTIEY .....oomreviiimnii s s s e 4
Section 3.04. Term of the Installment Sale AGIEEMENT ..o reere s ecrrerecns e sens et msmesesstsosseaseasmmensareassevssens 4
Section 3.05. INSAIIMENE PAYIMEILS ....cc.vevoveeecrereeeremceen e cntictstistsessma e rone bt bbb et e bd b bbeb bbb bbb b b babe 00 4
Section 3.06. Special Obligation 0f the DISIICT ...t enr s crer et sersessesersessesersesesenss e rensses 5
Section 3.07. Pledge of Net Revenues; Transfer to Pay Installment Payments; Release from Liefh....oecverccennnae 6
Section 3.08. Rate Covenant; Rate Stabilization FUNQ ... sssssassssss oo 7
SECLION 5105, SUPPIUS 1uvueveseereurerareesssemsarresrosseassessaserasraressensst sbsssstemmeemss s s seies s ems s ebedhemerem sesb bbb AR bbbt b 0 7
Section 3.09. Limitations on Future Obligations Secured by Net REVENUES ... v sssisssssennia 8
Section 3.10. AddItIONAl PAYIMENLS ......cevrrerrrirmsmrrimsssceeecssresseestrasessasssseseass renesesaeseressocssesesss sovsssssessessesessessese s ros onsses 9
ARTICLE IV:
PREPAYMENT OF INSTALLMENT PAYMENTS:
SECHOM A.01. PIEPAYINENL c.ovvrorrsreasrenescssnrimasissssssssssssasssssssssessssnsssiassssossasssssss sssas s barmsvs snsisesansasssesssass svssearssessonton 9
Section 4.02. OPLONAL PIEPAYITIENL ..c..uuerruesversserssessmrmaressomsisssassssssssisasessmsasi sasss ssas st ios b stissessestsassss seassssass bsstbensssosseavios 9
Section 4.03. Mandatory Prepayment From Net Proceeds of Insurance or Condemnation and from
UNEXPENAEA PROCEEAS ......oomececerenscrrcnrsermerseorsessomsrasnsssretsessrasesnsessesmessonmebd oot s ks ebsmss st it it somsnes 9
Section 4.04. Credit for AMOUNLS ON DEPOSIL ..ovmrvcereerirmsirserrersrstrstssrsstoesssenss st s seemssssssmesseess s semssmes sensmns s s s 10
Section 4.05. SeCUILY DEPOSIL ..ccvrircniiions mscnans s s s s s sss nss sas s b ss s saesras e saars sersessass s sees 10
ARTICLE V:
MAINTENANCE; TAXES; INSURANCE; AND OTHER MATTERS
Section 5.01. Maintenance, Taxes and AssesSMEnts, CONESS. v eivirssies s rearrerrssssreresessnssasmsssrs e seons 11
Section 5.02. MoQification OF PROJECE ...c...vrewsiirerisensarasions e smnes o sess s somsmss e et somrst s s ssaat stasessnsnssssaass 11
Section 5.03. Installation of District’s EQUIPIMEIL. ..o imeivnssenimmsmimamaimseamiiemesinens s ssssassass sessssssssssssaans 11
Section 5.04. Pubiic Liability and Property Damage INSULANCE ............imooe oo ereaceeceemms s srsbsrss s rsssss s s 12
Section 5.05. Fire and Extended Coverage INSUTANCE. ... vererieeresens rress s aessns e sreseemeccene s besbisbs bt s 12
Section 5.06. Insurance Net Proceeds; FOrm OF POHCIES .v..ciiiiiivirrsiisomresrisimsnissiassrasisisenssssass iossessssasarasass 12
Section 5.07. Application 0f Net PrOCEAS..........cooccviiimiiimminsiems s ssssrsansssnms seeess st s st ssssssssisensosvesssas 13
SECHON 3.08. AUVANCES .onuieisvesrversecisessesss rrsressrsasasssossssssesmssansenss roess sersassasrsassossens e resomsransess semesns semss semsmsesmsens sisiorinet 13
SECHON 5.08. AUVATICES .o..ovvveeen e ce e enecemeesee s et b sea st bbb RSB E04Rb S SR P SRR SR s PR b r e b e b it 13
ARTICLE VI:
DISCLAIMER OF WARRANTIES; ACCESS; INDEMNITY
Section 6,01, DiSClaimer OF WaITANTIES.........cccuewverarrererecmmeestris e s e st s bsia s s sad st s ra st AR st a R0 L5



Section 6.02. Access to the Project and Records s i e s sssssssiesons 15

Section 6,03, INABMAILY ..o oo ettt b e et b e bes e S b e b bt bt s s bbb nb bttt 15
ARTICLE VII;
EVENTS OF DEFAULT AND REMEDIES:
Section 7.01. Events of Default Defined...........coueemrermeermimsminmrism st ssssmssssssas st st sssoss semssssisasssesssssas s s 16
Section 7.02. Remedies 0n Defalill .........cirimsienssmsims i st sasssssims s isssssiasarssessssns s 16
Section 7.03. No Remedy EXCIUSIVE. viicimormmmmmiss s msiims s sttt ias st sastsss st s nass pisstsss s rasssarisasasisonns 17
Section 7.04. Prosecution and DEfense OF SUIS....cowurorsmrecrremmruusssissmssssesrsasmessessssmssses sesems seessreasssesseersemsesssears 17
Section 7.05. No Additional Waiver Implied by One WaIVEL .oimmessisoimsisisnsasmssimmmmim i 17
Section 7.06. Application of the PrOCEEAS. ... v e et arsasssn s iscassns s bt srs b s ssmsa s 17
Section 7.07. Liability Limited to Net REVERUES .c..vne s s sssss s s 17
Section 7.08. Trust Administrator and Certificates Owners to Exercise RightS .. 18
Section 7.09. Pro Rata Application oF Net REVEIUES ..o s essnssssssamsasssssi s 18
ARTICLE Vil
MISCELLANEQUS:
Section 8.01. Assignment, Sale or Lease by the DISICE ... et rescen s e ers s reesmessamseessens 18
Section 8.02. Amendment of [nstallment Sale AZreement ... s 18
Section 8.03. BINAINE EITECL ..vn e oot et et e mencr s cenesrer e me e bbb bbb b b bbb 500 18
Section 8.04. APPICABIE LAW o..en. i i sncassin st ressebsaassassesssras s ssnssasn e sssamss sesss sems seseess smamsnssasanssnans 19
Section 8.05. SEVETADIIILY ....cvvvt i e e e ettt st e e s e e e e SRR b Re AT A PRRO RS 0AnE 19
SECHON B.0G. CAPLIONS ....oovurrvrereriaasrareamsessassiasnssossensasmass sosressisssssab st s st bas b R s S s AR b sombs b em bR RR s 008 19
SECHON B.0T. NEE CONMIEACT.....coceeeemeoececeetes o vossesrasrass somensasssoesassesansmmssarese bas bs st SRs s d s S b b s R b skt s bbb st b asast s ans 19
Section 8.08. Further Assurances and COrrective INSIIUMENLS .......cooomecererereerimmecrmeereesrerecrrmms rensacsscrsraseeas omscsecems 19
Section 8.09. Authority and District REpPresentatives ... meriomnsr vissimsassssssssssss s sssss s somsrsassssssasssssns 19
SECTION 810, NOLCES 1vroveeereeemereeeseemiemuscoeesrevesvas cemsaesase roeas 4441 b et 4844844 P R4S AE RS F SRR A R SR P ERS AR08 19
Section 8.11. EXECULION iN COUNREIPATLS ..evvvovorcvs o sssstsinsssssiostssssmsiasss s sassssesansanss sesssos sonssmessnssmssncs sos smmssssmas sessssesns 20
Exhibit A DesCription 0F the PROJECL. ... vcsreissirnenre e simsonse s snssnessesssmssssomsmass s s semssmns semssmsmsmsas s s s s A-l
Exhibit B Schedule of Installment PAYMENTS. ........vceeeeeemceceecmecmcecescmcennenes et et seresrsbas e R ebe o B-1

-ii-



INSTALLMENT SALE AGREEMENT

THIS INSTALLMENT SALE AGREEMENT, dated as of February [, 2021, by and between the
BYRON BETHANY PUBLIC FINANCING AUTHORITY, a California joint powers authority duly
organized and existing pursuant to the laws of the State of California, as seller (the “Authority”), and the
BYRON BETHANY IRRIGATION DISTRICT, an irrigation district duly organized and validly existing
under the Constitution and laws of the State of California, as purchaser (the “District”);

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, the District and the Authority have each adopted a resolution agreeing to enter into
certain contractual relations with each other for the purpose, among other things, of arranging financing for
the acquisition and construction of improvements to the District’s public irrigation system (the “Enterprise™),
as more particularly described in Exhibit A hereto (the “Project”); and

WHEREAS, the Authority has been formed for the purpose, among others, of assisting
municipalities such as the District in the financing of public capital improvements within or of benefit to the
District; and

WHEREAS, to that end, the Authority will cause the execution and delivery of Series 2021
Enterprise Revenue Bonds in the principal amount of § (the “Bonds™), and apply the proceeds of
the sale thereof to the acquisition and construction of the Project; and

WHEREAS, the Bonds will be issued pursuant to the terms and conditions of a Trust Agreement by
and among the Authority, the District and the General Manager of the District, as the trust administrator
named therein (the “Trust Agreement”); and

WHEREAS, the District has determined to purchase the Project from the Authority pursuant to this
Installment Sale Agreement; and

WHEREAS, the District will make installment payments pursuant to this Installment Sale
Agreement (the “Installment Payments™) from the Net Revenues (as defined herein) of the Enterprise in order
to purchase the Project from the Authority; and

WHEREAS, the Authority will assign its right to receive [nstallment Payments to the General
Manager of the Byron Bethany Irrigation District, as trust administrator, pursuant to an Assignment
Agreement, dated as of February 1, 2021 (the “Assignment Agreement”) for the benefit of the Owners (as
defined herein) of the Bonds;

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the above premises and of the mutual covenants
hereinafter contained and for other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is
hereby acknowledged, the parties hereto agree as follows:



ARTICLE]
GENERAL

Section 1.01. Definitions. Unless the context otherwise requires, the terms defined in the Trust
Agreement, dated as of February 1, 2021, by and among the General Manager of the Byron Bethany Irrigation
District, as Trust Administrator, the Authority and the District, shall, for all purposes of this Installment Sale
Agreement, have the meanings specified therein.

Section 1.02. Representations, Covenants and Warranties. The District and the Authority
represent, covenant and warrant to cach other as fallows:

(@) Each is validly organized and existing under the laws of the State.

(b) The laws of the State authorize each to enter into this Installment Sale Agreement
and the Trust Agreement and to enter into the transactions contemplated by and to carry out its
obligations under each of the aforesaid agreements, and each is duly authorized to execute such
agreements.

(©) The execution and delivery of this Installment Sale Agreement, the Trust
Agreement, the fulfillment of or compliance with the terms and conditions hereof or thereof, and the
consummation of the transactions contemplated by this Installment Sale Agreement and the Trust
Agreement do not conflict with and do not result in a material breach of the terms, conditions or
provisions of any restriction or any agreement or instrument to which either is now a party or by
which either is bound or constitutes a default under any such agreement or instrument.

(d) Each has duly executed this Installment Sale Agreement and the Trust Agreement
in accordance with the laws of the State.

(e) The Project has not been the subject of a previous conveyance by the District.

) The District has not issued or incurred any cbligations which are currently
outstanding having any priority in payment out of the Gross Revenues or the Net Revenues over the
payment of the Installment Payments as provided herein.

Section 1.03. Written Certificates.

(a) Contents. Every Written Certificate provided for in this Installment Sale Agreement
with respect to compliance with any provision hereof {other than Written Certificates delivered on
the Closing Date) shall include (a) a statement that the person making or giving such Written
Certificate or opinion has read such provision and the definitions herein relating thereto; (b) a brief
statement as to the nature and scope of the examination or investigation upon which the Written
Certificate is based; (c) a statement that, in the opinion of such person, he or she has made or caused
to be made such examination or investigation as is necessary to enable him or her to express an
informed opinion with respect to the subject matter referred to in the instrument to which his or her
signature is affixed; (d) a statement of the assumptions upon which such Written Certificaie is based,

INSTALLMENT SALE AGREEMENT
2.



and that such assumptions are reasonable; and (e) a statement as to whether, in the opinion of such
person, such provision has been complied with.

(b)  Reliance. Any such Written Certificate made or given by a District Representative
may be based, insofar as it relates to legal or accounting matters, upon a certificate or opinion of or
representation by counsel or an accountant, unless such District Representative knows, or in the
exercise of reasonable care should have known, that the certificate, opinion or representation with
respect to the matters upon which such Written Certificate may be based, as aforesaid, is erroneous.
Any such certificate or opinion made or given by counsel or an accountant may be based, insofar as
it relates to factual matters (with respect to which information is in the possession of the District, as
the case may be) upon a certificate or opinion of or representation by a District Representative, unless
such counsel or accountant knows, or in the exercise of reasonable care should have known, that the
certificate or opinion or representation with respect to the matters upon which such person’s
certificate or opinion or representation may be based is erroneous. The same District Representative,
or the same counsel or accountant, as the case may be, need not certify 1o all of the matters required
to be certified under any provision of this [nstallment Sale Agreement, but different officers, counsel
or accountants may certify to different matters, respectively.

Section 1.04. Exhibits. The following Exhibits are attached to, and by this reference are made a part
of, this Installment Sale Agreement:

Exhibit A: Project Description
Exhibit B: Instaliment Payments Schedule

ARTICLE I
DEPOSITS; PAYMENTS; ACQUISITION AND CONSTRUCTION

Section 2.01. Deposit of Moneys. The Authority shall cause to be deposited with the Trust
Administrator, the amounts derived from the proceeds of the Bonds (to be an aggregate of § ),
into the funds as provided in the Trust Agreement.

Section 2.02. Payment of Project Costs and Delivery Costs. Payment of the Project Costs and
Delivery Costs shall be made from the moneys deposited with the Trust Administrator in the Bond Proceeds
Fund, which moneys shall be disbursed for such purpose in accordance and upon compliance with Sections
3.02 and 3.03, respectively, of the Trust Agreement. The District hereby covenants to pay necessary Project
Costs and Delivery Costs in excess of amounts available from Bonds proceeds from any legally available
source of funds. The fees and disbursements of counsel to the District and the Authority and Bond Counsel,
the fees and disbursements of the financial advisor to the District, fees of the California Debt and [nvestment
Advisory Commission (“CDIAC™), fees of Bank’s Counse| and other miscellaneous expenses of the District
incurred in connection with this Installment Sale Agreement or the Bonds shall all be the obligation of the
District. The Bank shall have no responsibility for any expenses associated with this installment Sale
Agreement or the Bonds, including, but not limited to, the expenses identified above as the obligation of the
District.

INSTALLMENT SALE AGREEMENT
-3-



Section 2.03. Unexpended Proceeds. In accordance with Section 3.04 of the Trust Agreement, all
excess moneys remaining in the Bond Proceeds Fund and not required for payment of Project Costs and
Delivery Costs shall be transferred to the Installment Payment Fund and applied to the payment of debt service
on the Bonds.

Section 2.04. Acquisition and Construction of the Project. The Authority hereby appoints the
District as its agent to cause the Acquisition and Construction of the Project.

ARTICLE III
PROJECT SALE AND TITLE; INSTALLMENT PAYMENTS; NET REVENUES

Section 3.01. Sale. The Authority hereby sells, bargains and conveys the Project to the District, and
the District hereby purchases the Project from the Authority upon the terms and conditions set forth in this
[nstallment Sale Agreement.

Section 3.02. Title. The District and the Authority agree that title to the Project, and each component
thereof, shall be deemed conveyed to and vested in the District upon the completion of the acquisition,
construction and installation thereof. The Authority and its officers shall take all actions necessary to vest in
the District all of the Authority’s rights in and title to the Project.

Section 3.03. Assignment by the Authority. The Authority’s right, title and interest in this
Installment Sale Agreement, including the right to receive and enforce payment of the Installment Payments
to be made by the District under this Installment Sale Agreement, have been assigned to the Trust
Administrator, subject to certain exceptions, pursuant to the Assignment Agreement, to which assignment the
District hereby consents. The District understands and agrees that the Authority has assigned its right, title
and interest (but not its duties or obligations) in this Installment Sale Agreement to the Trust Administrator
pursuant to the Assignment Agreement for the benefit of the Owners of the Bonds. The Authority hereby
directs the District, and the District hereby agrees, o pay to the Trust Administrator at the Trust
Administrator’s Trust Office or at such other place as the Trust Administrator shall direct in writing, all
payments payable by the District pursuant to this Installment Sale Agreement.

Section 3.04. Term of the Installment Sale Agreement. The Term of the Installment Sale
Agreement shall be as provided in the Trust Agreement.

Section 3.05. Installment Payments.

(a) Obligation to Pay. The District agrees to pay to the Authority, its successors and
assigns, as the purchase price of the Project, the Installment Payments, consisting of components of
principal and interest, on the Instaliment Payment Dates and in the amounts specified in Exhibit B
hereto.

(b) Reduction upon Partial Prepayment. In the ¢vent the District prepays less than all
of the remaining principal components of the Installment Paymenis pursuant to Sections 4.02 and
4,03 hereof, the amount of such prepayment shall be applied to reduce the principal component of
the subsequent remaining Installment Payments in inverse order of maturity, unless otherwise

INSTALLMENT SALE AGREEMENT
e



requested by District and agreed to by Bank in its reasonabie discretion, and the interest component
of each subsequent remaining Installment Payment shall be reduced by the aggregate cotresponding
amount of interest which would otherwise be payable with respect to the Bonds redeemed as a result
of such prepayment.

() Rate on Overduc Payments. In the event the District should fail to make any of the
payments required in this Section 3.05 so that there are insufficient moneys on hand in the Installment
Payment Fund to pay any Installment Payment in full on an Installment Payment Date, the Installment
Payment in default shall continue as an obligation of the District unti) the amount in default shalt
have been fully paid and the District agrees to pay the same with interest thereon, to the extent
permitted by law, from the date thereof at the rate of interest payable with respect to the Bonds.

Section 3.06. Special Obligation of the District.

{a) Limitations. The District’s obligation to pay the Installment Payments shall be a
special obligation limited solely to Net Revenues. Under no circumstances shall the District be
required to advance any moneys derived from any source of income other than the Net Revenues and
other sources specifically identified herein for the payment of the Installment Payments, nor shal
any other funds or property of the District be liable for the payment of the Installment Payments.

{b) Obligations Unconditional. The obligations of the District to make the Installment
Payments from Net Revenues and to perform and observe the other agreements contained herein shall
be absolute and unconditional and shall not be subject to any defense or any right of set-off,
counterclaim or recoupment arising out of any breach of the District, the Authority or the Trust
Administrator of any obligation to the District or otherwise with respect to the Project, whether
hereunder or otherwise, or aut of indebtedness or liability at any time owing to the District by the
Authority or the Trust Administrator.

{c) Obligations Specified. Until such time as all of the Installment Payments shall have
been fully paid or prepaid, the District:

(i) will not suspend, abate, or discontinue any payments provided for in Section
3.05 hereof;

(i)  will perform and observe all other agreements contained in this Installment
Sale Agreement; and

(iii)  will not terminate the Term of the Installment Sale Agreement for any cause,
including, the occurrence of any acts or circumstances that may constitute failure of
consideration, eviction or constructive eviction, destruction of or damage to the Project, the
taking by eminent domain of title to or temporary use of any or all of the Project, commercial
frustration of purpose, any change in the tax or ather laws of the United States of America
or of the State or any political subdivision of either thereof or any failure of the Authority or
the Trust Administrator to perform and observe any agreement, whether express or implied,
or any duty, liability or obligation arising out of or connected with the Trust Agreement, the
Assignment Agreement or this Installment Sale Agreement.

INSTALLMENT SALE AGREEMENT
-5-



Lien.

(d) Authority Obligations. Nothing contained in this Section 3.06 shall be construed
to release the Authority from the performance of any of the agreements on its part herein contained,
and in the event the Authority shall fail to perform any such agreements on its part, the District may
institute such action against the Authority as the District may deem necessary to compel performance
so long as such action does not abrogate the obligations of the District contained in Section 3.06(b)
above. The District may, however, at the District’s own cost and expense and in the District’s own
name or in the name of the Authority prosecute or defend any action or proceeding or take any other
action involving third persons which the District deems reasonably necessary in order to secure or
protect the Disirict’s right of possession, occupancy and use hereunder, and in such event the
Authority hereby agrees to cooperate fully with the District and to take such action necessary to effect
the substitution of the District for the Authority in such action or proceeding if the District shall so
request,

Section 3.07. Pledge of Net Revenues; Transfer to Pay Installment Payments; Release from

(a) Pledge of Net Revenues. The District hereby agrees that the payment of the
Installment Payments shall be secured by a first pledge, charge and lien upon Net Revenues which
pledge, charge and lien are on a parity with any Parity Obligations, and Net Revenues sufficient to
pay the Installment Payments as they become due and payable are hereby pledged, charged, assigned,
transferred and set over by the District to the Authority and its assigns for the purpose of securing
payment of the Installment Payments. The Net Revenues shall constitute a trust fund for the security
and payment of the Installment Payments.

Pursuant to Section 5451 of the Government Code of the State of Califomia, the pledge of
the Net Revenues by the District for the repayment of the principal of, premium, if any, and interest
components of the Installment Payments constitutes a first lien and security interest which
immediately attaches to such Net Revenues, and is effective and binding against the District and its
successors and creditors and all others asserting rights therein irrespective of whether those parties
have notice of the pledge, irrespective of whether such amounts are or may be deemed to be a fixture
and without the need for physical delivery, recordation, filing or further act.

(b) Transfer to Pay Installment Payments. In order to provide for the payment of
Installment Payments when due, the District shall, on or before each Installment Payment Date,
transfer to the Trust Administrator for deposit into the Installment Payment Fund the amount
indicated in Exhibit B attached hereto as required for the next oceurring Installment Payment Date.
Notwithstanding Exhibit B attached hereto, the District shall be obligated to make Installment
Payments sufficient to pay all principal and interest due with respect to the Bonds.

(e} Release from Lien. Following the transfers described in paragraph (b) of this
Section 3.07 with respect to Net Revenues allocable to such Fiscal Year in excess of amounts required
for the payment of Bonds and Parity Obligations, if any issued or incurred in accordance with Section
3.09(b), in such Fiscal Year shall be released from the lien of this Installment Sale Agreement and
shall be available for any lawful purpose of the District.

INSTALLMENT SALE AGREEMENT
-6-



Section 3.08. Rates, Fees, and Charges.

(a) The District will, at all times while the Bonds remains outstanding, fix, prescribe and collect
rates, fees and charges in connection with the Enterprise so as to yield Revenues at least sufficient, after
making reasonable allowances for contingencies and errors in the estimates, to pay the following amounts in
the order set forth below:

(N All Operation and Maintenance Costs of the Enterprise;

2) The Debt Service payments and all other payments (including payments under
reimbursement agreements) with respect to all Parity Obligations as they become due and payable;

(3) All amounts, if any, required to restore the balance in any reserve accounts
established for Parity Obligations in accordance with the terms of such Parity Obligations
Documents, without preference or priority; and

4) All payments required to meet any other abligations of the District that are charges,
liens, encumbrances upon, or which are otherwise payable from the Revenues during such Fiscal
Year.

{b) Furthermore, the District shall fix, prescribe, revise and collect rates, fees and charges for
the services and facilities furnished by the Enterprise during each Fiscal Year which are sufficient to yield
estimated Net Revenues which are at least equal to one hundred twenty percent (120%) of the aggrepate
amount of Debt Service on all Parity Obligations payable from Net Revenues coming due and payable during
such Fiscal Year. The District may make adjustments, from time to time, in its rates, fees and charges as it
deems necessary, but shall not reduce its rates, fees and charges below those in effect unless the Net Revenues
resulting from such reduced rates, fees and charges shall at all times be sufficient to meet the requirements
set forth in this paragraph.

(c) If the District violates the covenants set forth in subsections (a) or (b) hereof, such violation
shall not, in and of itself, be a default under this Installment Sale Agreement and shall not give rise to a
declaration of an Event of Default so long as (i) Net Revenues (calculated without taking into account any
amounts transferred into the Installment Payment Fund from the Rate Stabilization Fund pursuant to
subsection (d) below), are at least equal to the Maximum Annual Debt Service coming due and payable during
such Fiscal Year, and (ii) within 60 days after the date such violation is discovered, the District either (y)
transfers enough moneys from the Rate Stabilization Fund sufficient to yield estimated Net Revenues which
are at east equal to one hundred twenty percent (120%) of the aggregate amount of Debt Service on all Parity
Obligations payable from Net Revenues coming due and payable during such Fiscal Year in compliance with
subsection (b) hereof, or (z) hires an Independent Financial Consultant to review the revenues and expenses
of the Enterprise, and abides by such consultant’s recommendations to revise the schedule of rates, fees,
expenses and charges, and to revise any Operation and Maintenance Costs insofar as practicable, and to take
such other actions as are necessary so as to produce Net Revenues to cure such violation for future
compliance; provided, however, that, if the District does not, or cannot, transfer fraom the Rate Stabilization
Fund the amount necessary to comply with subsection (b) hereof, or atherwise cure such violation within six
(6) months after the date such violation is discovered, an Event of Default shall be deemed to have occurred
under Section 7.01 hereof.

INSTALLMENT SALE AGREEMENT
-7-



) The Rate Stabilization Fund is not pledged to secure payment of the Installment Payments.
Amounts in the Rate Stabilization Fund shall be applied solely for the uses and purposes set forth herein. The
District shall have the right to deposit into the Rate Stabilization Fund from time to time any amount of funds
which are legally available therefor; provided that deposits for each Fiscal Year may be made until (but not
after) one hundred twenty (120) days foliowing the end of such Fiscal Year, In addition, the District shall be
permitted to withdraw amounts on depaosit in the Rate Stabilization Fund for any other lawful purpose.

For the purpose of computing the amount of Revenues for any Fiscal Year for purposes of the
preceding subsection (a), or the amount of Net Revenues for any Fiscal Year for purposes of the preceding
subsection (b), the District shall be permitted to transfer amounts on deposit in the Rate Stabilization Fund to
the Installment Payment Fund, such transfers to be made until (but not afier) one hundred twenty (120) days
after the end of such Fiscal Year.

Section 3.09. Limitations on Future Obligations Sccured by Net Revenues.

(2) No Obligations Superior to Installment Payments. [n order to protect further the
availability of the Net Revenues and the security for the Installment Payments and any Parity
Obligations, the District hereby agrees that the District shall not, so long as any Bonds are
outstanding, issue or incur any obligations payable from Gross Revenues or Net Revenues senior or
superior to the Installment Payments or any Parity Obligations.

(b)  Parity Obligations. The District may at any time issue Parity Obligations payable
from Net Revenues on a parity with debt service on the Bonds to provide financing or refinancing
for the Enterprise in such principal amount as shall be determined by the District. The District may
issue or incur any such Parity Obligations subject to the following specific conditions, which are
hereby made canditions precedent to the issuance and delivery of such Parity Obligations:

(i) The District is not in default under the terms of this Instaliment Sale
Agreement,

(i)  The Net Revenues {calculated without taking into account any amounts
transferred into the Installment Payment Fund from the Rate Stabilization Fund), calculated
in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles, either (i) as shown by the
books of the District for the latest Fiscal Year, as verified by a certificate of an Authorized
Repregentative of the District, or (ii) as shown by the bocks of the District for any more
recent twelve ( [ 2) month period selected by the District, as verified by a certificate or opinion
of an Independent Certified Public Accountant employed by the District, plus in either case
(at the option of the District) the Additional Revenues, shall be at least equal to one hundred
twenty percent {120%) of the amount of Maximum Annual Debt Service on all outstanding
Parity Obligations and the Parity Obligations to be issued; and

(iiiy  Except with respect to the Bonds, and at the District’s sole discretion, there
may be established from the proceeds of such Parity Obligations a reserve fund for the
security of such Parity Obligations.

INSTALLMENT SALE AGREEMENT
8-



The provisions of subsection b(ii) of this Section 3.09 shall not apply to any Parity
Obligations if, and to the extent that (i) all of the proceeds of such Parity Obligations (other than
proceeds applied to pay costs of issuing such Parity Obligations and to make the reserve fund deposit
required pursuant to subsection b(iii) of this Section 3.09) shall be deposited in an irrevocable escrow
held in cash or invested in Federal Securities for the purpose of paying the principal of and interest
and premium (if any} on such outstanding Parity Obligations, and (ii) at the time of the incurring of
such Parity Obligations, the District certifies in writing that maximum annual debt service on such
Parity Obligations will not exceed Maximum Annual Debt Service on the outstanding Parity
Obligations being refunded, and (iii) the final maturity of such Parity Obligations is not later than the
final maturity of the Parity Obligations being refunded.

The District may at any time execute contracts or issue bonds or other indebtedness payable
from Net Revenues or the Installment Payment Fund payable on a subordinated basis to the payment
of the Debt Service payments on Parity Obligations.

Section 3.10. Additional Payments. [n addition to the Installment Payments, the District shall pay,
from Net Revenues, when due all costs and expenses incurred by the Authority to comply with the provisions
of the Trust Agreement and this Installment Sale Agreement, including, without limitation all Delivery Costs
(to the extent not paid from amounts on deposit in the Bond Proceeds Fund), compensation due to the Trust
Administrator for its fees, costs and expenses incurred under the Trust Agreement and the Assignment
Agreement and all costs and expenses of attorneys, auditors, engineers and accountants.

ARTICLE IV

PREPAYMENT OF INSTALLMENT PAYMENTS

Section 4.01. Prepayment. The District shall have the right to prepay the Installment Payments, but
only in the manner, at the times and in all respects in accordance with the provisions of this Article [V.

Section 4.02. Optional Prepayment. Subject to the terms and conditions of this Section 4.02, the
Authority hereby grants an option to District to prepay the [nstallment Payments in full or in patt, by paying
part ot all, as the case may be, of the unpaid principal compaonent of the Instalment Payments as set forth in
Exhibit B, but not in an amount of less than the Denomination Amount or any integral multiple thereof, at the
times, penalties and manner set forth in Article [V of the Trust Agreement. Said option may be exercised on
any date following written notice by the District to the Authority and the Trust Administrator of the exercise
of such option at least forty-five {45) days prior to date designated for prepayment (unless waived by the
Authority or Trust Administrator).

In the event of prepayment in part, the District or Authority shall revise the Exhibit B Schedule of
Installment Payments, which schedule shall take into account such prepayment and shall be and become for
all purposes thereafter the “Amended Exhibit B to the Installment Sale Agreement.”

Section 4.03. Mandatory Prepayment from Net Proceeds of Insurance or Condemnation and
from Unexpended Proceeds. The District shall be obligated to prepay the Installment Payments in whole or
in part on any Installment Payment Date from and to the extent of (a) any Net Proceeds of any insurance or
condemnation award theretofore deposited in the Installment Payment Fund for such purpose pursuant to
Section 5.07 hereof or pursuant to Section 7.02 of the Trust Agreement; and (b) from any excess monies

INSTALLMENT SALE AGREEMENT
9



remaining in the Bond Proceeds Fund and not required for payment of Project or Delivery Costs
{“Unexpended Proceeds™). The District and the Authority hereby agree that such Net Proceeds and
Unexpended Proceeds shall be credited towards the District’s obligations under this Section 4.03. Except in
the case of such prepayment of the Installment Payments in full, such payment shall be in addition to the
[nstallment Payment required to be paid by the District on such date.

Section 4,04, Credit for Amounts on Deposit. In the event the District elects or is required to prepay
the Installment Payments in full under this Article IV, such that the Trust Agreement shall be discharged by
its terms as a result of such prepayment, all amounts then on deposit in the Installment Payment Fund and the
Bond Proceeds Fund shall be credited towards the amounts required to be so prepaid.

Section 4.05. Security Deposit. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Installment Sale
Agreement, the District may, on any date, secure the payment of Installment Payments by a deposit with the
Trust Administrator, as escrow holder under an escrow deposit and trust agreement as referenced in Section
14.01{d) of the Trust Agreement, of:

(a) All Ipstallment Payments. in the case of a security deposit relating to all
Installment Paymenis, either (i) an amount which, together with amounts on deposit in the Installment
Payment Fund, is sufficient to pay all unpaid Installment Payments, including the principal and
interest components thereof, in accordance with the [nstallment Payment schedule set forth in Exhibit
B attached hereto, or (ii) Defeasance Obligations, together with cash, if required, in such amount as
will, in the opinion of nationally-recognized bond counsel and of an independent certified public
accountant, together with interest to accrue thereon and, if required, all or a portion of moneys or
Defeasance Obligations then on deposit in the Installment Payment Fund, be fully sufficient to pay
all unpaid Installment Payments on their Installment Payment Date; or

) Portion of Installment Payments. in the case of a security deposit relating to a
portion of the Installment Payments both (i) a Written Certificate executed by a District
Representative designating the portion of the Installment Payments to which the deposit pertains, and
(ii) cash or Defeasance Obligations, in such amount as will, together with interest to be received
thereon, if any, and an allocable portion of amounts on deposit in the Installment Payment Fund, be
fully sufficient in the opinion of an independent certified public accountant, o pay the portion of the
Installment Payments designated in the aforesaid District Representative’s Written Certificate.

(©) Effect. In the event of a deposit pursuant to this Section 4.05, all obligations of the
District under this Installment Sale Agreement pertaining to the portion of the Installment Payments
for which the deposit has been made shall cease and terminate, excepting only the obligation of the
District to make, or cause to be made, all [nstallment Payments, or the portion of Installment
Payments to which the deposit pertains, from the deposit made by District pursuant to this Section
4,05, Such deposit shall be deemed to be and shall constitute a special fund for the payment of
Instaliment Payments in accordance with the provisions of this Installment Sale Agreement; and
further provided that any security deposit relating to the Project shall not affect the covenant of the
District contained in Section 3.09 hereof in the event such security deposit is insufficient to pay ot
prepay all Installment Payments relating to the Project when and as the same become due and
payable. Upon said deposit, the Authority will execute or cause to be executed any and all documents
as may be necessary to release the security provided hereby to the extent of such deposit.

INSTALLMENT SALE AGREEMENT
=10-



ARTICLEYV
MAINTENANCE; TAXES; INSURANCE; COVENANTS AND OTHER MATTERS
Section 5,01, Maintenance, Taxes and Assessments, Contests.

(2) Operation and Maintenance. The District covenants to operate the Enterprise in
an efficient and economical mannet, and operate, maintain and preserve the Enterprise in good repair
and working order in accordance with customary standards and practices applicable to similar
facilities

()  Taxesand Assessments, The District shall also pay or cause to be paid all taxes and
assessments of any type or nature charged to the Authority or the District or levied, assessed or
charged against the Enterprise or the respective interests or estates therein; provided that with respect
to special assessments or other governmental charges that may tawfully be paid in installments over
a period of years, the District shall be obligated to pay only such installments as are required to be
paid during the Term of the Installment Sale Agreement as and when the same become due.

{©) Contest. The District may, at the District’s expense and in its name, in good faith
contest any such taxes, assessments and charges and, in the event of any such contest, may permit
the taxes, assessments or charges so contested to remain unpaid during the period of such contest and
any appeal therefrom unless the Authority shall notify the District that, in the opinion of Independent
Counsel, by nonpayment of any such items, the Project or any part thereof will be subject to loss or
forfeiture, in which event the District shall prompily pay such taxes, assessments or charges or
provide the Authority with full security against any loss which may result from nonpayment, in form
satisfactory to the Authority.

Section 5.02. Modification of Project. The District shall, at its own expense, have the right to
remodel the Project or to make additions, modifications and improvements thereto. All such additions,
modifications and improvements shall thereafter comprise part of the Project and be subject to the provisions
of this Installment Sale Agreement. Such additions, modifications and improvements shall not in any way
damage the Project or cause it to be used for purposes other than those authorized under the provisions of
state and federal law; and the Project, upon completion of any additions, modifications and improvements
made pursuant to this Section 5.02, shall be of a value which is not substantially less than the value of the
Project immediately prior to the making of such additions, modifications and improvements.

Section 5.03. Installation of District’s Equipment. The District may at any time and from time to
time, in its sole discretion and at its own expense, install or permit to be installed other items of equipment or
other personal property in or upon the Project. All such items shali remain the sole property of the District, in
which neither the Authority nor the Trust Administrator shall have any interest, and may be modified or
removed by the District at any time provided that the District shall repair and restore any and all damage to
the Project resulting from the installation, modification or removal of any such items. Nothing in this
installment Sale Agreement shall prevent the District from purchasing items to be installed pursuant to this
Section 5.03 under a conditional sale or lease purchase contract, or subject to a vendor’s lien or security
agreement, as security for the unpaid portion of the purchase price thereof.

INSTALLMENT SALE AGREEMENT
-



Section 5.04. Public Liability and Property Damage Insurance,

(@) Insurance Policies. The District shall maintain or cause to be maintained,
throughout the Term of the Installment Sale Agreement, insurance policies, including a standard
comprehensive general insurance policy or policies in protection of the District, its members, officers,
agents and employees. Said policy or policies shall provide for indemnification of said parties against
direct or contingent loss or liability for damages for bodily and personal injury, death or property
damage occasioned by reason of the construction or operation of the Enterprise (but only if such
insurance is available at reasonable cost on the open market from reputable insurance companies).
Such policy or policies shall afford protection in such amounts, with such deductibles, as are usually
covered in connection with operations similar to the Enterprise. Such hability insurance may be
maintained as part of or in conjunction with any other liability insurance coverage carried by the
District, and may be maintained in the form of insurance maintained through a nonprofit public
benefit corporation created for such purpose or in the form of self-insurance by the District.

(b)  Self-Imsurance. If the District shall maintain self-insurance, it shall supply to the
Trust Administrator a statement of sufficiency by an independent insurance consultant or the
District’s risk manager on an annual basis as described in Section 5.06 hereof.

(c) Application of Net Proceeds. The Net Proceeds of such liability insurance shall be
applied toward extinguishment or satisfaction of the liability with respect to which the insurance
proceeds shall have been paid.

Section 5,05, Fire and Extended Coverage Insurance.

(a) Insurance Policies. The District shall procure and maintain, or cause to be procured
and maintained, throughout the Term of the Installment Sale Agreement, insurance against loss or
damage 1o any above-ground structures, including District-owned equipment and machinery housed
therein, constituting any part of the Enterprise by fire and lightning, with extended coverage insurance
but not including earthquake insurance. Such insurance need not include reservoirs, standpipes and
elevated tanks. Such insurance shall be in an amount which is not less than 100% of the replacement
cost of the Project. Such insurance may be subject to a deductible clause of not to exceed ten percent
of said replacement cost for any one loss. Such insurance may be maintained as part of or in
conjunction with any other fire and extended coverage insurance carried or required to be carried by
the District, and may be maintained in the form of insurance maintained through a nonprofit public
benefit corporation created for such purpose or in the form of self-insurance by the District.

(b) Self-Insurance, If the District shall maintain self-insurance, it will supply to the
Trust Administrator a statement of sufficiency by an independent insurance consultant or the
District’s risk manager on an annual basis as described in Section 5.06 hereof.

(© Application of Net Proceeds. Net Proceeds of such insurance shall be applied as
provided in Section 5.07 hereof.

Section 5.06. Insurance Net Proceeds; Form of Policies. The insurance required by Section 5.05
hereof shall provide that all applicable proceeds thereunder shall be payable to the Trust Administrator for
the benefit of the Bonds Owners. The District shall pay or cause to be paid when due the premiums for all

INSTALLMENT SALE AGREEMENT
-12-



insurance policies required by this Installment Sale Agreement. All such policies shall provide that the
Authority and the Trust Administrator are named as additional insureds and that the Trust Administrator shall
be given thirty (30) days’ notice of each expiration, any intended cancellation thereof or reduction of the
coverage provided thereby. The Trust Administrator shall not be responsible for the sufficiency of any
insurance herein required or for the obtaining of such insurance and shall be fully protected in accepting
payment on account of such insurance or any adjustment, compromise or settlement of any loss agreed to by
the District. The District shall cause to be delivered to the Trust Administrator annually, no later than the end
of each Fiscal Year, a Written Certificate signed by a District Representative stating that the District is in
compliance with Sections 5.04 and 5.05 of this Agreement. The Trust Administrator may conclusively rely
on such Written Cextificates.

Section 5.07. Application of Net Proceeds.

(a) From Insurance Award. The Net Proceeds of any insurance award resulting from
any damage to or destruction of the Project by fire or other casuaity shall be deposited in the Insurance
and Condemnation Fund by the Trust Administrator promptly upon receipt thereof and, if the District
Representative notifies the Trust Administrator in writing of the District’s determination that the
replacement, repair, restoration, modification or improvement of the Project is not economically
feasible or in the best interest of the District, then such Net Proceeds shall be promptly transferred by
the Trust Administrator to the Installment Payment Fund to be applied as provided in Section 4.03
hereof. All Net Proceeds deposited in the Insurance and Condemnation Fund and not so transferred
shall be applied to the prompt replacement, repair, restoration, modification or improvement of the
Project by the District, upon receipt of a requisition, signed by the District Representative and, so
long as all of the Outstanding Bonds are held by the Bank, the Owner of the Bonds stating with
respect to each payment to be made (i) the requisition number, (ii) the name and address of the person,
firm or corporation to whom payment is due, (iii) the amount to be paid and (iv) that each obligation
mentioned therein has been properly incurred, is a proper charge against the Insurance and
Condemnation Fund, has not been the basis of any previous withdrawal, and specifying in reasonable
detail the nature of the obligation. Any balance of the Net Proceeds remaining after such work has
been completed shall be transferred to the Installment Payment Fund. The District covenanis that it
will commence such replacement, repair, restoration, modification or improvement or indicate that
such replacement, repair, restoration, modification or improvement is not economically feasible
within 180 days of receipt of such Net Proceeds.

(b) From Eminent Domain Award. The Net Proceeds of any eminent domain award
shall be deposited in the Insurance and Condemnation Fund to be held and applied by the Trust
Administrator pursuant to Section 7.02 of the Trust Agreement.

Section 5.08 Advances, If the District shall fail to perform any of its obligations under this Article
V, the Authority may, but shall not be obligated to, take such action as may be necessary to cure such failure,
including the advancement of money, and the District shall be obligated to repay all such advances as soon
as possible, with interest at the rate of interest with respect to the Bonds from the date of the advance to the
date of repayment.

Section 5,09 Records and Accounts; Audited Financials; Compliance Certificate. The District

shall keep proper books of records and accounts of the Enterprise, separate from all other records and

INSTALLMENT SALE AGREEMENT
-13-



accounts, in which complete and correct entries are made of all transactions relating to the Enterprise. Said
books shall, upon prior request, be subject to the reasonable inspection of the Bank. The District shall cause
the books and accounts of the Enterprise to be audited annually by an independent certified public accountant
or firm of certified public accountants, not more than 270 days after the close of each Fiscal Year, and shall
furnish a copy of such report to the Bank; provided, that the audit of the accounts of the Enterprise may be
included as part of 2 general District-wide audit. Additionally, the District will provide Bank with a copy of
its annual budget, as adopted or amended, within 30 days of adoption or amendment. Other reporting, such
as Bank may require from time to time, could include copies of any long-term capital improvement plans.

Section 5.10 Collection of Rates and Charges. The District will have in effect at all times rules
and regulations requiring each consumer or customer utilizing the Enterprise facilities to pay the rates, fees
and charges applicable to such use or benefit received. Except in connection with the receipt of federal or
State funding, the District will not permit any part of the Enterprise or any facility thereof to be used or taken
advantage of free of charge by any corporation, firm ot petson, or by any public agency (including the United
States of America, the State of California and any city, county, district, political subdivision, public
corporation or agency of any thereof).

Section 5.11. Competitive Facilities. Except for any Enterprise facilities existing as of the date
hereof, the District will not, to the extent permitted by law, acquire, maintain or operate and will not, to the
extent permitted by law and within the scope of its powers, permit any other public or private agency,
authority, city, special district, or political subdivision or any person whomsoever to acquire, maintain or
operate within the sphere of influence of the District any irrigation district system competitive with the
Enterprise; provided, however, that the District may, with the written consent of the Bank first had and
abtained, assign all or a portion of the Enterprise to another entity upon delivery to the Bank of an opinion of
counsel experienced in the field of law relating to municipal bonds that such assignment will not adversely
affect the tax-exempt status of the interest with respect to the Bonds, and provided such entity assumes the
obligations of the District hereunder.

Section 5.12. Observance of Laws and Regulations. The District will well and truly keep, observe
and perform or cause to be kept, observed and performed all valid and lawful obligations or regulations now
or hereafter imposed on it by contract, or prescribed by any law of the United States, or of the State, or by
any officer, board or commission having jurisdiction or control, as a condition of the continued enjoyment of -
any and every right, privilege or franchise now owned or hereafter acquired and enjoyed by the District,
including the District's right to exist and carry on business as a Califomia irrigation district, to the end that
such rights, privileges and franchises shall be maintained and preserved, and shall not become abandoned,
forfeited or in any manner impaired.

Section 5.13. Private Activity Bond Limitation. The District shall assure that monies deposited
pursuant to this Installment Sale Agreement are not so used as to cause Bonds to satisfy the private business
tests of section 141{b} of the Code or the private loan financing test of section 141(d) of the Code.

Section 5.14. Federal Guarantee Prohibition. The District shall not take any action or permit or
suffer any action to be taken if the result of the same would be to cause the Bonds or the [nterest Components
of the Instaliment Payments to be “federally guaranteed™ within the meaning of section 149(b) of the Code.

INSTALLMENT SALE AGREEMENT
-14-



Section 5.15. Rebate Requirement. The District shall take any and ail actions necessary to assure
compliance with Section 148(f) of the Code, relating to the rebate of excess investment earnings, if any, to
the federal government.

Section 5.16. No Arbitrage. The District shall not take any action with respect to the proceeds of
Bonds which, if such action had been reasonably expected to have been taken, or had been deliberately and
intentionally taken, on the date this Installment Sale Agreement was entered into would have caused the
Bonds to be an “arbitrage bond” within the meaning of Section 148 of the Code.

Section 5.17. Budget. The District hereby covenants to take such action as may be necessary to
include all Installment Payments and all other amounts due hereunder in its annual budget and to make the
necessary annual appropriations for all such Installment Payments and all other amount due hereunder.

ARTICLE VI
DISCLAIMER OF WARRANTIES; ACCESS; INDEMNITY

Section 6.01. Disclaimer of Warranties. The Authority makes no warranty or representation, either
express or implied, as to the value, design, condition, merchantability or fitness for any particular purpose or
fitness for the use contemplated by the District for the Project or any item thereof, or any other representation
or warranty with respect to the Project or any item thereof. In no event shall the Authority be liable for
incidental, indirect, special or consequential damages, in connection with or arising out of this Installment
Sale Agreement or the Trust Agreement for the existence, furnishing, functioning or District’s use of the
Project.

Section 6.02, Access to the Project and Records. To the extent permitted by law, the District agrees
that the Authority, any Authority Representative, and the Authority’s successors or assigns shall have the
right at all reasonable times to enter upon and to examine and inspect the Project. The District further agrees
that the Authority, any Authority Representative, and the Authority’s successors or assigns shall have such
rights of access to the Project as may be reasonably necessary to cause the proper maintenance of the Project
in the event of failure by the District to perform its obligations hereunder. In addition, the District agrees that
the Authority, any Authority Representative, and the Authotity’s successors or assigns shall have the right at
all reasonable times to inspect and examine all books, papers and records of the Authority and the District
pertaining to the Project and the Bonds, to make copies thereof and to take non-privileged memoranda
therefrom or with respect thereto as may be desired.

Section 6.03. Indemnity. The District shall and hereby agrees to indemnify and save the Authority
and its successors and assigns harmless from and against all claims, losses and damages, including legal fees
and expenses, arising out of: (a) the use, maintenance, condition or management of, or from any work or thing
done on the Project by the District; (b) any breach or default on the part of the District in the performance of
any of its obligations under this Installment Sale Agreement; (c) any act or negligence of the District or of
any of its agents, contractors, servants, employees or licensees with respect to the Project; (d) any act or
negligence of any assignee or sublessee of the District with respect to the Project; or (¢) the construction of
the Project or the authorization of payment of the Project Costs or Delivery Costs by the District or the
Authority. No indemnification is made under this Section 6.03, or elsewhere in this Installment Sale

[NSTALLMENT SALE AGREEMENT
.15-



Agreement for willful misconduct, negligence, or breach of duty under this Installment Sale Agreement by
the Authority, its officers, agents, employees, stccessors or assigns,

ARTICLE VII
EVENTS OF DEFAULT AND REMEDIES

Section 7.01. Events of Default Defined. The following shall be “events of default” under this
Installment Sale Agreement and the terms “cvents of default” and “default” shall mean, whenever they are
used in this Installment Sale Agreement, any one or more of the following events:

(a) Failure by the District to pay any Installment Payment by the Installment Payment
Date or failure to make any other payment required to be paid hereunder at the time specified herein;
or

(b)  Failure by the District to observe and perform any covenant, condition or agreement
on its part to be observed or performed in this Installment Sale Agreement or the Trust Agreement,
other than as referred to in clause (a) of this Section 7.01, for a period of thirty (30) days after written
notice specifying such failure and requesting that it be remedied has been given to the District by the
Authority, the Trust Administrator or the Owners of not less than twenty-five percent (25%) in
aggregate principal amount of Bonds then Outstanding; provided, however, if the failure stated in the
notice cannot be corrected within the applicable period, the Authority, the Trust Administrator or
such Qwners, as applicable, shall not unreasonably withhold their consent to an extension of such
time if corrective action is instituted by the District within the applicable period and diligently
putsued until the default is corrected; or

(c) The filing by the District of a petition or answer seeking arrangement aor
reorganization under the federal bankruptcy laws or any other applicable law of the United States of
America or any state therein, or the approval by a court of competent jurisdiction of a petition filed
with or without the consent of the District seeking arrangement or reorganization under the federal
bankruptcy laws or any other applicable law of the United States of America or any state therein, or,
under the provisions of any other law for the relief or aid of debtors, any court of competent
jurisdiction assumes custody or control of the District or of the whole or any substantial part of its

propetty; or

(d) An event of default shall have occurred and be continuing with respect to any Parity
Obligations (or Subordinate Debt which requires or permits the immediate acceleration thereof).

Section 7.02. Remedies on Defanlt. Whenever any event of default referred to in Section 7.0 1 hereof
shall have happened and be continuing, the Authority shall have the right, at its option and without any further
demand or notice, to:

(@) declare all principal components of the unpaid Installment Payments, together with
accrued interest at the rate or rates specified in the respective Outstanding Bonds from the
immediately preceding Installment Payment Date on which payment was made, to be immediately
due and payable, whereupon the same shall become due and payable; and

INSTALLMENT SALE AGREEMENT
o=



{(b) take whalever action at law or in equity may appear necessary or desirable to collect
the Installment Payments then due or thereafter to become due during the Term of the Installment
Sale Agreement, or enforce performance and observance of any obligation, agreement or covenant
of the District under this Installment Sale Agreement.

Section 7.03. No Remedy Exclusive. No remedy herein confetred upon or reserved to the Authority
is intended to be exclusive and every such remedy shall be cumulative and shall be in addition to every other
remedy given under this Installment Sale Agreement or now or hereafter existing at law or in equity. No delay
or omission to exercise any right or power accruing upon any default shall impair any such right or power or
shall be construed to be a waiver thereof, but any such right and power may be exercised from time to time
and as often as may be deemed expedient. In order to entitle the Authority to exercise any remedy reserved
to it in this Article VII it shall not be necessary o give any notice, other than such notice as may be required
in this Article VII or by law.

Section 7.04. Prosecution and Defense of Suits. The District shall promptly, upon request of the
Authority or its assignee, from time to time take or cause to be taken such action as may be necessary or
proper to remedy or cure any defect in or cloud upon the title to the Project whether now existing or hereafter
developing and shall prosecute all such suits, actions and other proceedings as may be appropriate for such
purpose and, to the extent permitted by law, shall indemnify or cause to be indemnified the Authority and its
assignee for all loss, cost, damage and expense, including attorneys’ fees, which they or any of them may
incur by reason of any such defect, cloud, suit, action or proceedings.

To the extent permitted by law, the District shall defend, or cause to be defended, against every suit,
action or proceeding at any time brought against the Authority or its assignee upon any claim arising out of
the receipt, application or disbursement of any of the Net Revenues or involving the rights or duties of the
Authority or its assignee under this Installment Sale Agreement or the Trust Agreement; provided, that the
Authority and its assignee at their election may appear in and defend any such suit, action or proceeding. The
District shall indemnify or cause to be indemnified the Authority and its assignee against any and all liability
claimed or asserted by any person, arising out of such receipt, application or disbursement. Notwithstanding
any contrary provision hereof, this covenant shall remain in full force and effect, even though all Installment
Payments have been fully paid and satisfied, until a date which is three (3) years following the payment of
the last of the Installment Payments.

Section 7.05. No Additional Waiver Implied by One Waiver. In the event any agreement contained
in this Installment Sale Agreement should be breached by either party and thereafter waived by the other
party, such waiver shall be limited to the particular breach so waived and shall not be deemed to waive any
other breach hereunder.

Section 7.06. Application of the Proceeds. The Trust Administrator, as assignee of the Authority,
shall apply all amounts received under this Article VII as set forth in Section 13.03 of the Trust Agreement.

Section 7.07. Liability Limited to Net Revenues. Notwithstanding any provision of this Installment
Sale Agreement, the District’s liability to pay the Installment Payments and other amounts hereunder shall be
limited solely to Net Revenues as provided in Sections 3.06 and 3.07 hereof. In the event that Net Revenues
shall be insufficient at any time to pay an Instaliment Payment in full, the District shall not be [iable to pay or
prepay such installment Payment other than from Net Revenues,

INSTALLMENT SALE AGREEMENT
«17-



Section 7.08. Trust Administrator and Bond Owners to Exercise Rights. Such rights and
remedies as are given to the Authority under this Article VII have been assigned by the Authority to the Trust
Administrator under the Assignment Agreement, to which assignment the District hereby consents. Such
rights and remedies shall be exercised by the Trust Administrator and the Owners of the Bonds as provided
in the Trust Agreement.

Section 7.09. Pro Rata Application of Net Revenues. If, at any time, there is a deficiency in Net
Revenues available to pay the Installment Payments, any amounts due with respect to Parity Obligations, or
amounts required to replenish any reserve fund established for Parity Obligations, available Net Revenues
shall be applied on a pro rata basis to the payment of such Installment Payments and to the payment of
amounts due with respect to Parity Obligations, then to the replenishment of any reserve fund established for
Parity Obligations.

ARTICLE VIII
MISCELLANEOUS

Section 8.01, Assignment, Sale or Lease by the District.

(a) Assignment or Sale. This Installment Sale Agreement may not be assigned by the
District, and the Enterprise may not be sold by the District during the Term of this Installment Sale
Agreement.

(b) Lease. The District may lease the Project, or any portion thereof, with the consent
of the Owner of the Bonds so long as all of the Outstanding Bonds are held by the Bank thereof, and
subject to all of the following conditions:

D This Installment Sale Agreement and the obligation of the District to make
Installment Payments hereunder shall remain obligations of the District;

(ii) The District shall, within thirty (30) days after the delivery thereof, furnish
or cause to be furnished to the Authority and the Trust Administrator a true and complete
copy of the documents accomplishing such lease;

(iii)  Nosuch lease by the District shall cause the Project to be used for a purpose
other than a governmental or proprietary function authorized under the provisions of the
Constitution and laws of the State; and

(iv)  No such lease shall cause the interest component of the Instaliment
Payments to become subject to federal income taxes or State personal income taxes.

Section 8.02. Amendment of Installment Sale Agreement. The District will not alter, modify or
cancel or agree or consent to alter, modify or cancel this Installment Sale Agreement, except as permitted by
Article X of the Trust Agreement, without the written consent of the Trust Administrator and the Authority,

Section 8.03. Binding Effect. This Installment Sale Agreement shall inure to the benefit of and shall
be binding upon the Authority and the District and their respective successors and assigns.

INSTALLMENT SALE AGREEMENT
-18-



Section 8.04. Applicable Law. This Instailment Sale Agreement shall be governed by and construed
in accordance with the laws of the State.

Section 8.05. Severability. In the event any provision of this Installment Sale Agreement shall be
held invalid or unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not invalidate or
render unenforceable any other provision hereof,

Section 8.06. Captions. The captions or headings in this Installment Sale Agreement are for
convenience only and in no way define, timit or describe the scope or intent of any provision, Article or
Section of this Installment Sale Agreement.

Section 8.07. Net Contract. This [nstallment Sale Agreement shall be deemed and construed to be
a “net contract” and the District hereby agrees that the Installment Payments shall be an absolute net return
to the Authority, free and clear of any expenses, charges or set-offs whatsoever.

Section 8.08. Further Assurances and Corrective Instruments. The Authority and the District
agree that they will, from time to time, execute, acknowledge and deliver, or cause to be executed,
acknowledged and delivered, such supplements hereto and such further instruments as may reasonably be
required for correcting any inadequate or incorrect description of the Project hereby sold or intended so to be
or for carrying out the expressed intention of this Instaliment Sale Agreement.

Section 8.09. Authority and District Representatives. Whenever under the provisions of this
Installment Sale Agreement the approval of the Authority or the District is required, or the Authority or the
District is required to take some action at the request of the other, such approval or such request shall be given
for the Authority by an Authority Representative and for the District by a District Representative, and any
party hereto shall be authorized to rely upon any such approval or request.

Section 8.10. Notices. All notices, Written Certificates or other communications hereunder shall be
sufficiently given and shall be deemed to have been received 48 hours after deposit in the United States mail
with postage fully prepaid:

If to the District: Byron Bethany Irrigation District
7995 Bruns Road
Byron, CA 94514
Attention: General Manager

If to the Authority: Byron Bethany Public Financing Authority
7995 Bruns Road
Byron, CA 94514
Attention: Executive Director

If to the Trust Administrator: General Manager
Byron Bethany Irrigation District
7995 Bruns Road
Byron, CA 94514
Attention: General Manager

[NSTALLMENT SALE AGREEMENT
-19.



The Authority, the District, the Trust Administrator and the Government, by notice given
hereunder, may designate different addresses to which subsequent notices, Written Certificates or other
communications will be sent.

Section 8.11, Execution in Counterparts. This Installment Sale Agreement may be executed in
several counterparts, each of which shall be an original and all of which shall constitute but one and the same
instrurnent.

*HRFITREREER KR

INSTALLMENT SALE AGREEMENT
=20-



IN WITNESS, the Autharity has caused this Installment Sale Agreement to be executed in its
corporate name by its duly authorized officer and sealed with its corporate seal; and the District has caused
this [nstallment Sale Agreement to be executed in its name by its duly authorized officers, as of the date first
above written.

BYRON BETHANY PUBLIC FINANCING AUTHORITY,
as Seller

By

Executive Director

BYRON BETHANY IRRIGATION DISTRICT,
as Purchaser

General Manager

Attest

By

Secretary

INSTALLMENT SALE AGREEMENT
H-



EXHIBIT A

DESCRIPTION OF THE PROJECT

The Project to be acquired and constructed with the proceeds of the Bonds, is general described as follows:

The acquisition and construction of canal lining, canal overlay, box culvert crassings and fencing, as well as
any necessary lands, rights of way and othet real or personal propetty useful in connection therewith, together
with all additions, extensions, expansions, improvements and betterments thereto and equippings thereof.

Exhibit A
Poge 1



EXHIBIT B
SCHEDULE OF INSTALLMENT PAYMENTS

Installment Principal Interest installment
Payment Date Component Component* Payments

04401/2021
1040142021
04431/2022
10/01/2022
04/01/2023
10/01/2023
047012024
10/01/2024
04/G1/2025
10/31/2025
04/01/2026
10/01/2026
04/01/2027
10/01/2027
04/01/2028
10/31/2028
04/01/2029
10/01/2029
04/01/2030
10/0 112030

Totals

* [nterest is payable at the rate of 1.570%.

Exhibit B
Page i



AGENDA ITEM NO: 1

RUSSELL KAGEHIRO CHARLES TUSO

President

i Director
Divis f e i
iviston V Division VI
| |.\}T. J\i;\[[(l'[][ IRE IEEE BROWN
Vice President .
Division 111 [Director
BRILIE Division V11

LARRY ENOS, JR

Director

JACK ALVARLEZ
Director
Division VIII

Division 1

MARK MAGGIORI TOMPEREIRA
Director

it MINUTE SUMMARY Division IX

RICK GILMORIE

FELIX MUSCO Video Conference Board Meeting Um:ml N:uw
o apCretary
n'.)’."%'““’lr\, Tuesday, December 15, 2020 9:00 AM ’
Jwiston LY

Call-in Information:

Meeting ID: Join Zoom Meeting
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/8458078863
Meeting 1D: 845 807 8863
Call In Number
1-669-900-6833..8458078863#

The Board of Directors of the Byron-Bethany Irrigation District convened at approximately 9:00 a.m. This meeting
was held via teleconference in accordance with the Governor's Executive Order (N-29-20) and the declared State
of Emergency as a result of the threat of COVID-19, with President Kagehiro presiding.

CALL TO ORDER - ROLL CALL 9:02 a.mn.
ADOQOPTION OF THE AGENDA

M/S/C (Alvarez/Enos) Vote: (Ayes: Alvarez, Enos, Kagehiro, M. Maggiore, T. Maggiore, Pereira, Tuso; Noes: 0;
Absent: Brown, Muso; Abstain: 0): Adopt the Agenda

CONSENT CALENDAR

The following items are expected to be routine and non-controversial and can be acted on in one
consolidated motion as recommended or may be removed from the Consent Calendar and separately
considered at the request of any person.

Approve meeting minute summary of November, 2020.

Accept Treasurer’s Report through November 2020.

Approve Check Register through November 2020.

Approve West Side Service Area Check Register through November 2020.

Accept West Side Service Area Treasurer’s Reports through November 2020.

Adopt Resolution 2020-14: Consolidation of Oak Valley Community Bank Accounts.

N

M/S/C (T. Maggiore/Enos) Vote: (Ayes: Alvarez, Enos, Kagehiro, M. Maggiore, T. Maggiore, Musco, Pereira,
Tuso; Noes: 0; Absent: Brown; Abstain: 0): Adopt Consent Calendar

DISCUSSION/ACTION CALENDAR




Minute Summary December 15, 2020

7. Review and consider adopting Resolution 2020-15 Allowing Preliminary Project Expenditures to be
Reimbursed from Bond Revenue,

M/S/C (T. Maggiore/Pereira) Vote: (Ayes: Alvarez, Enos, Kagehiro, M. Maggiore, T. Maggiore, Musco, Pereira,
Tuso; Noes: 0; Absent: Brown; Abstain: 0): After reviewing the move to adopt Resolution 2020-15 Allowing
Preliminary Project Expenditures to be Reimbursed from Bond Revenue.

8. Review and consider adopting Resolution 2020-16 Authorizing the Use of Undesignated Reserves to
Fund Repayments under Section 4011 (a} (2) of the WIIN Act.

M/S/C (T. Maggiore/Pereira) Vote: (Ayes: Alvarez, Enos, Kagehiro, M. Maggiore, T, Maggiore, Musco, Pereira,
Tuso; Noes: 0; Absent: Brown; Abstain: 0): After discussion the folowing vote to adopt 2020-16 Authorizing
the General Manager to withdraw $2,175,612.00 from Undesignated Reserves to fund the Repayment
Obligation pursuant to Contract 14-06-200-785-LTRI-P. Additionally Authorizing the General Manager to
withdraw $344,018 from the Qak Valley Community Bank West Side Irrigation District account to fund the
Repayment Obligation pursuant to Contract No. 7-07-20-W0045-LTR1-P.

REPORTS

The General Manager advised the Board that with the paying off of the construction obligation of the Delta
Mendota Canal the District would be relieved of the Reclamation Reform Act (RRA) paperwork.

Nick Janes gave a report the upcoming PG&E tariffs and that California Municipal Utilities Association (CMUA)
are pushing against the PG&E tariffs.

ADJOURNMENT 9:37 a.m.

Submitted on January 11, 2021 Approved on January 19, 2021
Ms. Kelley Geyer, Deputy Secretary Mr. Russell Kagehiro, President
ATTENDANCE

Directors Present: Staff/Consultants/Present:
Russell Kagehiro Division V Rick Gilmore, General Manager
Mark Maggiore Division Il Kelley Geyer, AGM/Director of Admin
Tim Maggiore Division III Michael Vergara, 55D Law
Charles Tuso Division VI Alyson Ackermen, 55D Law
Larry Enos Division 1 Nick Janes, [-COMM, Inc.

Jack Alvarez Division IX

Tom Pereira Division VIII

Directors Absent:
Jeff Brown Division VII
Felix Musco Division IV



RESOLUTION 20211
APPLICATION FOR POST OFFICE BOX SERVICE

WHEREAS, on August 13, 2020, the San joaquin Local Agency Formation Commission {LAFCQ) adopted
Resolution 1435 ordering the consolidation of Byron-Bethany Irrigation District (BBID) and The West Side Irrigation
District {TWSID) with Byron-Bethany Irrigation District as the Successor District; and,

WHEREAS, LAFCCO's Certificate of Completion was completed on August 31, 2020 and filed with the San
Joaquin County Recorder’s Office on September 2, 2020; and,

WHEREAS, TWSID has PO Box service at the Tracy Post Office.
WHEREAS, BBID desires to retain said PO Box service.,
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, the Board of Directors of Byron-Bethany Irrigation District finds as follows:

1. Authorizes Carol Petz, former TWSID Secretary and current Clerk of the Tracy Office, to take any
and all action necessary to complete the Application for Post Office Box service on BBID's behalf.

Wb o a0 N a2 N

PASSED AND ADOPTED at a Meeting of the Board of Directors of Byron-Bethany Irrigation District on
19 January 2021 by the following vote:

AYES: ALVAREZ, ENOS, KAGEHIRO, M. MAGGIORE, T. MAGGIORE, PEREIRA, TUSO
NOES:

ABSENT:

ABSTAIN:

/s/ Russell Kagehiro
Mr. Russell Kagehiro, President

Secretary’s Certification

I, Kelley Geyer, Depuly Secretary of the Board of Directors of Byron-Bethany Irrigation District, do hereby certify that the
foregoing Resolution is a true and correct copy entered into the Minutes of the Meeting of 19 January, 2021, at which time a
quorum was present, and no motion to amend or rescind the abave resolution was made.

Kelley Geyer, Deputy Secretary



RESOLUTION 2021-2
AUTHORIZING DEBT SERVICE PREPAYMENT
FROM THE DHCCP RESERVE ACCOUNT

WHEREAS, in September 2020, the Board of Directors approved the debt service prepayment of the
District’s financial obligation relating to the Delta Habitat Conservation and Conveyance Plan.

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, the Board of Directors of Byron-Bethany Irrigation District finds as follows:

1. Authorizes the debt service prepayment of $483,579.00 from the District’s DHCCP Reserve
Account.

2. Authorizes the fund balance of the DHCCP Reserve to be placed into the General Account and the
DHCCP Reserve closed.

33k o3 3 oF o ok e 3 26 S 26 D e 06 0

PASSED AND ADOPTED at a Meeting of the Board of Directors of Byron-Bethany Irrigation District on
19 January 2021 by the following vote:

AYES: ALVAREZ, ENOS, KAGEHIRO, M. MAGGIORE, T. MAGGIORE, PEREIRA, TUSO
NOES:

ABSENT:

ABSTAIN:

/st Russell Kagehiro
Mr. Russell Kagehiro, President

Secretary’s Certification

I, Kelley Geyer, Deputy Secretary of the Board of Directors of Byron-Bethany Irrigation District, do hereby certify that the
foregoing Resolution is a true and correct copy entered into the Minutes of the Meeting of 19 January, 2021, at which time a
quorum was present, and no motion to amend or rescingd the above resolution was made.

Kelley Geyer, Deputy Secretary



RESOLUTION 2021-4

APPROVING, AUTHORIZING AND DIRECTING EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF A
TRUST AGREEMENT, INSTALLMENT SALE AGREEMENT AND ASSIGNMENT
AGREEMENT IN CONNECTION WITH THE ISSUANCE OF SERIES 2021 ENTERPRISE
REVENUE BONDS, AND SETTING FORTH THE TERMS AND CONDITIONS THEREQF;
AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF ANY AND ALL DOCUMENTS,
INSTRUMENTS OR CERTIFICATES NECESSARY OR DESIRABLE TO ACCOMPLISH THE
FOREGOING; AND PROVIDING FOR OTHER MATTERS PROPERLY RELATED
THERETO

WHEREAS, the Byron Bethany Irrigation District {the “District”), working together with the Byron
Bethany Public Financing Authority, a California joint powers authority duly organized and existing under
and by virtue of the laws of the State of California (the “Authority”), have agreed to enter into certain
contractual relations for the purpose, among other things, of providing financing for public capital
improvements of the District; and

WHEREAS, the District and the Town of Discovery Bay Community Services District, hereafter
sometimes referred to as “Members,” have heretofore approved the formation of the Authority through the
execution of a joint exercise of powers agreement, dated as of July 1, 2012 (the “JPA Agreement”); and

WHEREAS, the District desires to reimburse itself for a recent payment made on its contract
obligation (the “WIIN Contract”} to the US Bureau of Reclamation under Section 4011 of the Water
Infrastructure Improvements for the Nation (the “WIIN Act”), which is presently outstanding in the
approximate amount of $ 2,175,612.00 (the “WIIN Act Obligation”); and

WHEREAS, the District is also desirous of financing the acquisition and construction of a public
improvement project that includes canal lining, canal overlay, box culvert crossings and fencing, together
with all additions, extensions, expansions, improvements and betterments thereto (the “2021 Water Supply
Improvement Project,” and together with the WIIN Act Obligation, the “Project”); and

WHEREAS, for the purpose of providing financing for the Project, the District is hereby requesting
the Authority to issue its Byron Bethany Public Financing Authority, Series 2021 Enterprise Revenue Bonds
(WIIN Act Refinancing and Water Supply Project), in the aggregate principal amount of not to exceed
$4,500,000 {the “Bonds"), all pursuant to and secured by a Trust Agreement (the “Trust Agreement”), dated
as of February 1, 2021, by and among the District, the Authority and the General Manager of the District, as
trust administrator (the “Trustee Administrator”); and

WHEREAS, the District is authorized under the provisions of Articles 10 and 11 of Chapter 3 of Part
1 of Division 2 of Title 5 of the California Government Code, commencing with Section 53570 of said Code
(the “Bond Law"), to enter into financial arrangements for the purpose of refinancing certain outstanding
obligations of the District, including the WIIN Act Obligation; and



WHEREAS, the District proposes to purchase the Project from the Authority pursuant to a certain
Installment Sale Agreement (the “Installment Sale Agreement”), dated as of February 1, 2021, by and
between the Authority and the District, whereby the District will make prescribed installment payments (the
“Installment Payments”) from the Net Revenues (as defined in the Installment Sale Agreement) derived
from the District’s enterprise cperations, commensurate with the debt service scheduled for the repayment
of the Bonds; and

WHEREAS, to further implement the foregoing, the Authority and the Trustee Administrator
propose to execute and enter into an Assignment Agreement (the “Assignment Agreement”), dated as of
February 1, 2021, whereby the Authority will assign to the Trustee Administrator all of its rights and
entitlements under the Installment Sale Agreement, including but not limited to the entitlement to receive
the Installment Payments from the District; and

WHEREAS, the District and Authority propose to sell the Bonds to JPMorgan Chase Bank (the
“Bank”), pursuant to all on the terms and conditions herein set forth and as provided in the Trust Agreement
and Installment Sale Agreement; and

WHEREAS, the Board desires to designate the Installment Sale Agreement and Bonds as a
"Qualified Tax-Exempt Obligation” for purposes of Paragraph (3) of Section 265(b) of the Code; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to California Government Code (the “Government Code”) Section 5852.1,
certain good faith information relating to the Bonds is set forth herein and made public; and

WHEREAS, the District, with the aid of its staff, has reviewed the Trust Agreement, the Instaliment
Sale Agreement and the Assignment Agreement, the forms of which are on file with the Secretary, and the
Board wishes at this time to approve the foregoing in the public interests of the District; and

WHEREAS, all acts, conditions and things required by the Constitution and laws of the State of
California to exist, to have happened and to have been performed precedent to and in connection with the
consummation of such financing authorized hereby do exist, have happened and have been performed in
regular and due time, form and manner as required by law, and the District is now duly authorized and
empowered, pursuant to each and every requirement of law, to consummate such financing for the Project
in the manner and upon the terms herein provided; and

WHEREAS, the Board wishes at this time to authorize all proceedings relating to the Project and
the issuance of the Bonds and the execution and delivery of all agreements and documents relating thereto;
and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Directors of the Byron Bethany Irrigation
District as follows:

Section 1. Recitals and Findings. The Board hereby specifically finds and declares that each of
the statements, findings and determinations of the District set forth in the recitals set forth above and in



the preambles of the documents approved herein are true and correct and that the financing of the Project
will result in significant public benefits for the residents of the District. The Board hereby further finds and
determines that the total installment payments to be paid under the Installment Sale Agreement does not
exceed the fair market value of the Project as set forth in the Installment Sale Agreement.

Section 2. Authorized Representatives. The President, Vice President, General Manager and
Secretary or Deputy Secretary, and any other person authorized by the Board to act on behalf of the District
shall each be an “Authorized Representative” of the District for the purposes of structuring and providing
for the issuance of the Bonds, and are hereby authorized, jointly and severally, for and in the name of and
on behalf of the District, to execute and deliver any and all documents and certificates that may be required
to be executed in connection with the sale of the Bonds (including the investment of proceeds of the Bonds},
and to do any and all things and take any and all actions which may be necessary or advisable, in their
discretion, to effectuate the actions which the District has approved in this Resolution.

Section 3. Approval of the Issuance of the Bonds: Significant Public Benefits. The Board hereby

approves the issuance of the Bonds by the Authority in a principal amount of not to exceed $4,500,000, all as
above described. The Board hereby finds and determines that the issuance and sale of the Bonds by the
Authority to Bank will result in savings in effective interest rates, underwriting costs and issuance costs and
thereby result in significant public benefits to the District and Authority.

Section 4. Appointment of Trustee Administrator. The General Manager is hereby appointed to
act as Trustee Administrator under the Trust Agreement unless and until replaced in accordance with the

provisions of the Trust Agreement.

Section 5. Approval of Installment Sale Agreement. The Board hereby authorizes and approves
the purchase of the Project by the District pursuant to the Installment Sale Agreement. The Board hereby
approves the Installment Sale Agreement in substantially the form on file with the Secretary together with
any additions thereto or changes therein {including, but not limited to, the final amount of the sale price for
the Project and the final debt service payment schedule) deemed necessary or advisable by an Authorized
Representative of the District. Any Authorized Representative of the District is hereby authorized and
directed to execute, and the Secretary is hereby authorized and directed to attest and affix the seal of the
District to, the final form of the Installment Sale Agreement for and in the name and on behalf of the District
and the execution thereof shall be conclusive evidence of the Board’s approval of any such additions and
changes. The Board hereby authorizes the delivery and performance of the Instaltment Sale Agreement.

Section 6. Approval of Trust Agreement. The Board hereby approves the Trust Agreement in
substantially the form on file with the Secretary and consents to such revisions, amendments and
completions as shall be approved by an Authorized Representative of the District. Any Authorized
Representative of the District is hereby authorized and directed to execute, and the Secretary is hereby
authorized and directed to attest and affix the seal of the District to, the final form of the Trust Agreement
for and in the name and on behalf of the District and the execution thereof shall be conclusive evidence of
the Board's approval of any such additions and changes. The Board hereby authorizes the delivery and
performance of the Trust Agreement.



Section 7. Approval of Assignment Agreement.  The form of the Assignment Agreement
presented to this meeting and on file with the Secretary, is hereby approved. Each of the Authorized
Representatives is hereby authorized and directed, for and in the name and on behalf of the District, to
exectte and deliver to the Authority the Assignment Agreement in substantially said form, with such
changes therein as the Authorized Representative or Representatives executing the Assignment Agreement
may require or approve, such approval to be conclusively evidenced by the execution and delivery thereof
by one or more of the Authorized Representatives.

Section 8. Appoiniment of Consultants. In connection with the transactions conternplated in this
Resolution, the District hereby designates and appoints The Weist Law Firm to serve as bond counsel, and
Caldwell Sutter Capital, Inc. to serve as municipal advisor. The General Manager is authorized and directed
to execute an agreement with such firms in the respective forms on file with the Secretary to the Board.

Section 9. Qualified Tax-Exempt Obligation. The Board hereby designates the Installment Sale
Agreement and the Bonds for purposes of Paragraph (3) of Section 265(b) of the Cede as a “Qualified Tax-
Exempt Obligation” and covenants that the Installment Sale Agreement and the Bonds do not constitute a
private activity bond as defined in Section 141 of the Code and that the aggregate face amount of all tax-
exempt obligations issued by the District (including all subordinate entities of the District and all entities
which may issue obligations on behalf of the District) during the calendar year 2017 is not reasonably
expected to exceed $10,000,000, excluding, however, private activity bonds, as defined in Section 141 of the
Code (other than qualified 501(c)(3) bonds as defined in Section 145 of the Code) and current refunding
obligations having a principal amount not in excess of the refunded obligation.

Section 10, Good Faith Estimates. Set forth below are good faith estimates of the Municipal Advisor,
as required under Section 5852.1 of the Government Code. The following estimates have no bearing on, and
should not be misconstrued as, any not-to-exceed financial parameters authorized by this resolution.

(a) The true interest cost of the Bonds is estimated at 1.63%, calculated as provided in Section
5852.1{a){1)}(A) of the Government Code.

{b) The finance charge of the Bonds, including all fees and charges paid to third parties, is
estimated at $82,500.

{© Proceeds of the Bonds received by the District of $4,500,000.00 less the finance charge set
forth in (b) above, is equal to $4,417,500.00.

{d) The total payment amount calculated as provided in Section 5852.1(a}(1)(D} of the
Government Code is estimated at $4,586,961.78,

Section 11, Official Actions, Each Authorized Representative is hereby authorized and directed,
for and in the name and on behalf of the District, to do any and all things and take any and all actions,
including execution and delivery of any and all assignments, certificates, requisitions, agreements, notices,




consents, instruments of conveyance, warrants and other documents, which they, or any of them, may deem
necessary or advisable in order to consummate any of the transactions contemplated by the documents
approved pursuant to this Resolution.

Section 12. Effective Date. This Resolution shail take effect from and after the date of its passage
and adoption.

LR R E RS EE N

PASSED AND ADOPTED at a Meeting of the Board of Directors of Byron-Bethany Irrigation District on
19 January 2021 by the foliowing vote:

AYES: ALVAREZ, ENOS, KAGEHIRO, M, MAGGIORE, T. MAGGIORE, PEREIRA, TUSO
NOES:

ABSENT:

ABSTAIN:

fs/ Russell Kagehiro
Mr. Russell Kagehiro, President

Secretary’s Certification

L Kelley Geyer, Deputy Secretary of the Board of Directors of Byron-Bethany Irrigation District, do hereby certify that
the foregoing Resolution is a true and correct copy entered into the Minutes of the Meeting of 19 January, 2021, at
which time a quorum was present, and no motion to amend or rescind the above resolution was made.

Kelley Geyer, Deputy Secretary



RESOLUTION 2021-3
ACCEPTANCE OF DIRECTOR RESIGNATIONS
APPROVE REVISING DIRECTOR BOUNDARIES
(San Joaquin County)

WHEREAS, on August 13, 2020, the San Joaquin Local Agency Formation Commission (LAFCQ)
adopted Resolution 1435 ordering the consolidation of Byron-Bethany Irrigation District (BBID) and The
West Side Irrigation District (TWSID) with Byron-Bethany Irrigation District as the Successor District; and,

WHEREAS, LAFCO’s Certificate of Completion was completed on August 31, 2020 and filed with
the San Joaquin County Recorder’s Office on September 2, 2020; and,

WHEREAS, as a result of the consolidation, TWSID Directors Jack Alvarez and Tom Pereira to serve
as Directors of BBID representing areas of the former boundary of TWSID; and,

WHEREAS, Directors Jack Alvarez and Tom Pereira temporarily represented BBID Divisions VIII
and IX, as described in Exhibit A as attached; and,

WHEREAS, on December 22, 2020, a vacancy occurred on the Board of Directors as a result of the
resignation of Division VII Director Jeff Brown (Govi. Code Section 1780); and,

WHEREAS, on January 15, 2021, a vacancy occurred on the Board of Directors as a result of the
resignation of Division IV Director Felix Musco (Govt. Code Section 1780); and,

WHEREAS, Water Code Section 21552.1 (c) authorizes the Board of Directors of a consolidated or
reorganized District with greater than five directors to choose not to fill a vacancy; and,

WHEREAS, on June 8, 2010, a “Measure B” election was held, within the shared Counties of
Alameda, Contra Costa and San Joaquin, and the electorate approved to set the number of Directors to
seven Divisions,

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, the Board of Directors of Byron-Bethany Irrigation District finds as

follows:

1. The Board of Directors has determined not to fill the vacancies within Division IV and VII
and to reduce the total membership of the Board of Directors, pursuant to the 2010 passage of “Measure B”.

2. Approve the Division Boundaries as described in Exhibit B within San Joaquin County.
3 The Directors representing the San Joaquin County portion of BBID are as follows:
Division IV — Russell Kagehiro
Division V — Charles Tuso
Division VI - Tom Pereira

Division VII - Jack Alvarez



WEOE 0 B 5 0 3 3 2 e e

PASSED AND ADOPTED at a Meeting of the Board of Directors of Byron-Bethany Irrigation District on
19 January 2021 by the following vote:

AYES: ALVAREZ, ENOS, KAGEHIRO, M. MAGGIORE, T. MAGGIORE, PEREIRA, TUSC
NOES:

ABSENT:

ABSTAIN:

/s/ Russell Kagehiro
Mr. Russell Kagehiro, President

Secretary’s Certification

I, Kelley Geyer, Deputy Secretary of the Board of Directors of Byron-Bethany [rrigation District, do hereby certify that
the foregoing Resolution is a true and correct copy entered into the Minutes of the Meeting of 19 January, 2021, at
which time a quorum was present, and no motion to amend or rescind the above resolution was made.

Kelley Geyer, Deputy Secretary



4

™
S De AnzaBivd g

=
-

O

W Bethany Rd

LEGEND

[ consolidated Boundary
* Division 8
Spheres of Influence

Tracy

+ BBID Resolution 2021-3 Exhibit A

Service Layer Credt. Scurcew: Esn, HERE, Gamin, USG5, Intermap,
INCREMENT P, NRCan, Esri Jagan, METI, Esn China (Heng Kongl, Esn
Korea, Esn (Thaiand), NGCC, (o] OpenSteetMap contnibutors. and the
GIS Uner Community

Sources: Esn, Delomme, NAVTED, UBGS, NRCAN, METI oPC. TomTom

Figure

Byron Bethany Irrigation District, California

LN UIALE PR PR OB YR CMBE T AN YR RECATT | ISISETAT RS _BED_WESTMIDE_ COMNCLITATHNGIEMAFTLESWWIITE_I01800 1 1 WSID_S0D _Snvsione 020021 MID ED0M54a1 1200 T 3027 AM m



W Sugar Ra

Wilach Rd

Teacy Biva

W Clowet Ad

gt Wi anagh Ave

W Grant Line Ra

Hatly

Arbor Ave

Lakiiel Ave

M MacArthur D

EPescadero Ave

pe
el

W Grant

3 i ci W 23rd 81
® ;-]
: £
4 £ (=}
i - biE
£ B Ditoams €T % H
E 8 e I 0§ i
R :
I 3
R, | - tmeain
£ Fum &
- W12 St ! -
Lo W tth St Tracy W Lowel
= W A0th St j?..',' E =
z & ) =
[ 2 1 &
3 : g
Cyprose O % ::,
Cadimm i -
Pk Vb & o
Parh byt
ik
LI setutte R W M1 Diablo Ave
| M1 Cao Ave
Lol Lin :
2
i i ;
: i £
-4 &
5 =
4 »
&
:
'S
g
-
-
3 a @ %
2 % 5
£ g u
g 3
i w0 me b hbe foond
4 Linne - W Linne R W Linne Wit
E
LEGEND
D Consolidaled Boundary
~ Division 9
Spheres of Influence
Tracy
BBID Resolution 2021-3 Exhibit A ~
025 05
| A N
Miles
St s b S e 08 b
E . Ean Japan, |, Esn China (Hang Kang). Esn . - . . . .
Korea. Esn (Thaland. NGO, (6) Opan5Teetan controutor, and ha Figure Byron Bethany Irrigation District, California

GIS User
Sources Esni. DeLorme. NAVTEQ, USGS, NRCAN, METL PC. TomTam

chawm:

UNE IRACE RO FRDLE VRON BETHANYA RIGATH T TA SRS _DEI0_ WESTHIDE_CONSOLIDATION OIS MABFILES WAD_I01801 11 WAID_BE0_DISONS 20001776 MYD COOMLS 13182070 7 42 24 AN



LEGEND
[Ipivision 4

[_]Other Divisions

i _ ICounty
Resolution 2021-3, Exhibit B: Revised Div. IV Boundary

~
0 0.5 1
Miles
Service Layer Credits: Source: Esri, Maxar, GeoEye, Earthstar
Geographics, CNES/Airbus DS, USDA, USGS, AeroGRID, IGN,
and the GIS User Community FIGURE 4
Sources: Esri, DeLorme, NAVTEQ, USGS, NRCAN, METI, iPC,

Byron-Bethany Irrigation District

-
UMK LBACFFPOTPROJEYRONEE TRANYHRIGAT | G2 108 TASK1D_DITRICT _EMGINE LRTNG O SIMAPFILES/ON_CALL_DIvis| ONMAPPINGDIVISIONS_Z0210105 MAD EDUAS44I 1BR02L 100042 AM m



LEGEND
[_Ipbivision 5
[_]Other Divisions
l._.jCounty

Resolution 2021-3, Exhibit B: Revised Div. V Boundary

N
0 0.5 i)
1 ]
Miles

Service Layer Credits: Source: Esri, Maxar, GeoEye, Earthstar
Geographics, CNES/Airbus DS, USDA, USGS, AeroGRID, IGN,
and the GIS User Community FIGURE 5
Sources: Esri, DeLorme, NAVTEQ, USGS, NRCAN, METI, iPC,
TomTom Division 5§ Boundary

Byron-Bethany Irrigation District

UNKABAG FRDO FFA OB RONBE TrAN YIRRIGAT 113788\ TASK 1 3_TSTRICT ENGIMEERING QI MAPFILESION_CALL_DIVISIORMAMMNDIVIA ONE_1021 0108 M0 EDOTHAY LERAN) 10 3431 Al m:




LEGEND
[_Ipivision 6
[__lother Divisions
i___jCounty

Resolution 2021-3, Exhibit B: Revised Division VI Boundiry

N
(4] 05 1
WMiles
Service Layar Credits: Source: Esri, Maxar, GeoEye, Earthstar
Geographics, CNES/Airbus DS, USDA, USGS, AeroGRID, IGN,
and the GIS User Community FIGURE 6
. Esri, DeLorme, NAVTEQ, USGS, NRCAN, METI, iPC,
BBk HER W ! Division 6 Boundary

TornTom

Byron-Bethany Irrigation District

WK R ASALFPRS PRONEYRONBE THANYIRRIGET M BATEETAB K13 DIOTAIGT _EHGINE EHING G S MAPFILEGUIN_CA LL_DIVIRIONMARPING T L IONE_ 20710108 MAD E0035441 1RT071 133730 AM



LEGEND
[Ipivision 7
[__]Other Divisions
i_JcCounty

Resolution 2021-3, Exhibit B: Revised Div. VII Boundary

Service Layer Credits: Source: Esri, Maxar, GecEye, Earthstar
Geographics, CNES/Airbus DS, USDA, USGS, AeroGRID. IGN,

and the GIS User Community
Sources: Esri, DeLorme, NAVTEQ, USGS, NRCAN, METI, IPC,

TomTom

BYRONIE THARYIRRIGAT | ORTEITASH 1S ROIMEERINBGISMA AP P ROV S

FIGURE 7
Division 7 Boundary

Byron-Bethany Irrigation District

X[} EDOT5443 182021 10




